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WHQO WE ARE

Kimball International, Inc. is a preeminent manufacturer of furniture, furniture
components and electronic assemblies, serving customers around the world.
Our customers, both large and small, receive our undivided attention, as we
treat every one as the only one. Our touch is felt throughout daily life in both
the workplace and the home.

WHAT WE DO

Kimball International, Inc. provides a vast array of products from its two business
segments: the Furniture and Cabinets segment and the Electronic Contract
Assemblies segment. The Furniture and Cabinets segment provides furniture for
the office, residential, hospitality and healthcare industries, all sold under the
Company'’s family of brand names. Other products produced by Kimball on a
contract basis include television cabinets and stands, residential furniture, retail
infrastructure products and forest products. The Electronic Contract Assemblies
segment provides engineering and manufacturing services to a variety of
industries on a global sczile.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
(Amounts in thousands,

except for per share data) 2003 2002 % Change
Net Sales ‘ $1,154,692 $1,172,504 -1.5%
Net Income : 5,594 34,500 -83.8%
Return on Capital 1.15% 7.07% -83.7%
Earnings Per Share (Diluted)

Class A 0.13 0.89 -85.4%

Class B 0.15 0.91 -83.5%
Dividends Declared

Class A 0.62 0.62 0.0%

Class B 0.64 0.64 0.0%
Market Price Per Share

High 16.86 17.76

Low 12.50 10.54

Close 15.31 16.39

* Net Income, Return on Capital and Earnings Per Share include restructuring and other charges.

SALES BY
BUSINESS
SEGMENTS

Electronic Contract
Assemblies
$457 Million

Furniture and
Cabinets
$698 Million




TO OUR STAKEHOLDERS:

Kimball is here. Despite prolonged economic challenges and reductions in demand triggered by a soft
economy, increasing global competition and the uncertainties associated with war, Kimball International
continued to generate cash flow from operations in fiscal year 2003, produced profits, and continued to
maintain a solid balance sheet with little long-term debt.

Our balance sheet and healthy liquidity position enabled us toc stay focused on long-term strategies
as we continued to make prudent capital investments in equipment and technology during these difficult
times. These investments are instrumental to future sales growth and improved operating margins.

Our strong financial position is, in part, a result of our quick and proactive efforts to scale
our operations to current market demands. Our employees have worked hard at executing the restructuring
plan announced last December. A total of six underperforming manufacturing facilities were exited since the
announcement, improving our cash flow and positioning Kimball's cost structure favorably for the future.

The turbulent economy and its impact on our sales and net income notwithstanding, many other
positive events are occurring throughout your Company. Both Fortune and Forbes magazines recognized
Kimball for its competitive strength in each publication’s high-profile list of the nation’s leading businesses.

In the Electronic Contract Assemblies business segment, we expanded our base of global
customers, both new and existing. Kimball is well established in the automotive components market, and this
year, over 12 million vehicles worldwide will include Kimball components.

We are making advancements in the small engines and industrial
controls markets as well. Kimball is now making ignition control modules for
increasingly popular recreational vehicles such as ATVs, motorcycles and
perscnal watercraft. Fiscal year 2003 also saw a strengthening of our
Electronic Contract Assemblies’ global operations through an emphasis on
technology, information and business integration.

In the Furniture and Cabinets business segment, we are building
strong brand recognition among specifiers and customers alike. Once again,
Kimball Office was awarded prestigious “Best of NeoCon” awards for
excellence in new product design.

Kimball Office continues to invest in market research and new
product development, even while our major competitors have constrained
activity in this area. Our commitment to developing and offering new
products has proven critical in maintaining the loyalty and enthusiasm of
our dealers— this at a time when distribution is critical to success in the
office and home furnishings industry.

As a result, our National office furniture brand has realized notable
growth in both market share and revenue, even while the overall office
furniture industry has experienced a dramatic and prolonged decline. Yet the
world’s demand for wood products remains high. To meet these demands, our
Forest Products Group has undertaken a number of improvements in its
operations, lowering costs and raising both productivity and efficiency as well
as pursuing worldwide opportunities through expanded export channels. Douglas A. Habig (left)

Through our flexcel operations, the contract furniture manufacturing arm of Kimball International, and James C.Thyen
we have shown we remain committed and responsive to customer-driven needs in products, quality and
performance. We are not limited by any furniture or cabinet product type or market. Our flexibility,
acceleration and excellence enable us to bring our capabilities to bear across a variety of markets.

In closing, Kimball is here... wherever our global customers need us to be. But we also remain here,
strong and visible, among our employees, our communities and our Share Owners. Times and markets may
change, but our Guiding Principles do not. We remain committed to sound business practices, ethical
behavior and achieving success for all who hold a stake in our Company. If you wish to learn more about our
actions over the past year, we invite you to read the enclosed Form 10-K.

Dottt sy e

Douglas A. Habig James C. Thyen
Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer President
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We are in a lot of places you might

not expect. This year, over 12 million
vehicles worldwide will contain our
electronic components. From brake
control systems that make dealing with
commuter traffic easier, to sensors that
make driving more stable and provide
more efficient, sensitive passenger
safety systems, we are providing more
automative electronics than ever before.
In addition, we provide electronics for
telecommunications systems, including
chargers for radios and cell phones
used by police, fire departments and
emergency responders.
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Pictured below is a Harley-
Davidson aftermarket
Performance Ignition Control
WModule, which is manufaciured
by Rimball Electronics.
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The increasing popularity of
recreational vekhicles such as ATVs,
metoreycles and personal watersrail
has created a growing market for our
engine control and jgnition medules.
This is a natural extension of our
existing avtomotive market and
showld previde additienal business
growtlk.




High-quality wood veneers
are in great global demand
amid the trend toward cost-
effective veneered furniture.
Veneers also allow for unique
and creative designs such as
the Kimball Home Elegance
collecltion which feature tops
and drawer fronls using select
cherry veneers and walnut
inlay with @ symmetrical boolk
mateh or cathedral pattern
tramed by ash burl borders.

all

The hardwood forests of the Midwest
and the Appalachian chain provide
much of the raw materials for many
Kimball products. We pride ourselves
in being leaders in responsible,
sustainable forest management
techniques. This allows us to use high
guality, beautiful woods in our products
and to meet the increasing demand for
wood raw materials and veneers for
other manufacturers and for export. It
also enables us to protect a valuable
resource for future generations.

There is something very satisfying in
taking raw hardwood from cur forests
and through the efforts of many
crafismen, turning it into @ beautiful
piece of furniture. While hardwood trees
take many years to mature, and creating
sustainable forests is a long-term effort,
selective harvesting of trees benefils
the woodlands. Storms, disease, insecls
and other factors can shorten the life of
any tree. Responsible woodlands
management creates trees that are
stronger, healthier and better suiled to
be harvested for fine, quality furniture
while maintaining the long-term health
of the forest envirenment.
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Kimball provides design,
engineering, manulaciuring,
pacizaging and distribution of
contract eleclronics clircuit
boards, subassemblies and
components for a variety of
manuiacturers in the automotive,
telecommunicalions, medical
and compuler indusiries. The
personal computer on your
desk may have a Kimball
component in it.

From Wall Street to Main Street, for
global corporations and small start-ups,
from the mailroom to the executive
suite, we provide a variety of products
that businesses use every day. From
office casegoods, seating and systems
furniture, to custom banking products
like check-writing kiosks and teller
stations, to electronic components in
personal computers, Kimbal! products
are found in many companies and
businesses around the world. Many of
our products are branded with our
name, but many of them are not. As a
major OEM manufacturer, we are
sometimes only part of the products you
buy and use. We help companies
around the world build success.

Innovation in office furnilure
design kas led to several “Best of
NeoCon” awards in recent years
for Rimball @ifice. This year our
new Xsite system was the latest
recipient of that award. Xsite is
width-adjustable in three-ineh
increments, making it easy to
adapt to architectiural elements
and easy te construct workspaces
in the sizes and shapes needed.
QOpposite sides of the same frame
can have two distinct looks.
Performance tiles turn emply
space inte storage and display
areas. And Xsite s compatible
with olher Kimball ©ffice
products, allowing designers
complete planning freedom.




A major crulise line ship’s atrivum
highlights our capability in using very
upscale wood; fabric, plastic and metal
materials in creative and unusual
ways. Kimball made the counler tops
and display cases for the ship; as well
as a showcase kiosk in a gift shop; and
wall cases; TV stands, a receplion
area and computer stations. Kimball is
able to apply its expertise and
capabilities in buillding retail fixtures
for this industry and meet the very
strict maritime fire ratings code.

The proliferation of name brands, along
with an increasing emphasis on retalil
shopping in today's consumer society,
has led to a dependence on image as a
product differentiator. How product is
displayed and the retail setting is as
important as the product itself. The
ambiance of the trendy new restaurant
may be more important than the quality
of the food or the service. The trend
toward more national and international
distribution and an increased emphasis
on franchising has resulted in more
demand for store furnishings, signage,
fixtures, and displays. Custom designs
that create the correct image combined
with larger projects with shorter
deadlines, demand manufacturers who
can handle large, diverse projects.
Kimball provides one source from
concept through installation for a variety
of major brand name companies.

anag

Elegance is a new Kimball Home
bedroom collection with relaxed
English styling. It captures the
essence of Eurcpean antigques that
are treasured by families for a
lifetime. Elegance has been very
well received by our current dealer
base. But more importantly, our
new collections have opened doors
for us at major retailers and
department stores.




The use of new technology such as
computer-generated design/engineering,
allows us o concelve, prototype and sell
new products much more quickly than in
the past. It allows us to interact with our
customers and respond o their needs
with less investment of iime and costs.
The hospitality market provides
opportunities for both standard as well as

the custom (urnishings
wiich our rapid
prototyping capability
cenables us to delivern

The developed countries of the world
have an aging population that controls
a majority of the wealth. Those baby-
boomers are impacting two market
segments— travel/leisure and
healthcare. The hospitality market
should benefit from those baby-
boomers who have more discretionary
income after their children leave home
or after they retire. And the aging of
this group will dictate that the demands
on healthcare facilities wil! increase,
requiring new or upgraded facilities.
We have been aggressively targeting
these twc markets as major growth
opportunities. Some of the largest new
hotels in Las Vegas and Atlantic City,
as well as a Florida-based theme park
and other destination resort and urban
center hotels, have used our furnishings
in over 20,000 guest rooms in the
past year.

Healthcare patient room
furniture design is moving
toward more “home-like”
furnishings. The less sterile
looking environment helps
make patients and their
families more comliortable.
The demand for long-term
care will continue to increase.




A dynamic and growing segment of
the residential industry is home
entertainment cabinetry. Recently
introduced, Maple Creek Il Tall Wall
easily accommeodates 36", 32", or
27" TVs, and @ variety of other
electronic components. Designed

for today’s electronic needs, it still

has a traditional style that many
Variable-speed, high efficiency consumers want. This consele has
motor controls for GE made by two removable pull-out CD/OVD
Kimball Electronics for heating, storage trays and tweo large storage
ventilation and air conditioning drawers for tapes or games. And the
(HVAC) applications are being lower pier doors are shipped with
used more frequently in homes interchangeable speaker panels and
to reduce energy consumption. wood panels.
In many areas of the world, as

well as the United States,
reducing energy usage is not
just a cost reducing factor, but
may be mandated by laws and
regulations, especially during
peak usage periods.

and also

Low interest rates have encouraged
homeowners to buy larger, more
expensive homes, to remodel, or to
refinance, lowering their mortgage
payments. The resulting investment in
home improvement and furnishings,
and the trend toward more electronics
and computers in the home, provide
growth opportunities in several areas.
Electronic controls for heating and
cooling systems and appliances,
big-screen TV cabinets, traditionaily-
styled entertainment furniture designed
for use with home electronics, kitchen
and bath cabinets, and high-quality
home furnishings for the living room,
dining room, bedroom, and home office,
are some of the products we provide
for the residential market.

Kimball international, Inc. 7



BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Douglas A. Habig*
Chairman of the Board,
Chief Executive Officer
Director 30 years

James C.Thyen*
President,
Director 22 years

John B. Habig*

Chairman of the Board of Directors of
SVBA&T Corporation, a Bank Holding
Company of Springs Valley Bank & Trust
Company

Director 47 years

Ronald J. Thyen*

Senior Executive Vice President,
Operations Officer,

Assistant Secretary (Retired)
Director 30 years

COFFICERS

Corporate Officers

Randall L.-Catt
Executive Vice President,
Human Resources

Donald B. Charron
Executive Vice President,
President,

Kimbalt Electronics Group

J. Brent Elliott
Executive Vice President,
President, flexcel

John H. Kahle
Executive Vice President,
General Counsel, Secretary

P. Daniel Miller
Executive Vice President,
President, Furniture Brands Group

Robert F. Schneider
Executive Vice President,
Chief Financial Officer,
Treasurer

Gary W. Schwartz
Executive Vice President,
Chief Information Officer

Barry L. Cook
Vice President,
President, Forest Products Group

fiona K. Hoffman
Vice President, General Manager,
National Office Furniture

T. Randall lles
Vice President, General Manager,
Kimball Office

R. Gregory Kincer
Vice President, Business Development,
Assistant Treasurer
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John T. Thyen

Senior Executive Vice President,
Strategic Marketing

Director 13 years

Brian K. Habig
Self-employed
Director 11 years

Jack R. Wentworth+ #

Arthur M. Weimer Professor Emeritus of
Business Administration, Indiana University
Director 19 years

Alan B. Graf, Jr.+ #

Executive Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer, FedEx Corporation
Director 7 years

Christine M. Vujovich+ #

Vice President, Marketing and
Environmental Policy, Cummins, Inc.
Director 9 years

Larry J. Knust

Vice President,

Contract Furniture Operations,
flexcel

Ronald J. Sermersheim
Vice President,
Environmental, Health & Safety

Bean M. Vonderheide

Vice President, Continuous
Improvement and Innovation,
flexcel

Domestic Subsidiary Officers

Stephen B. Ashman

Vice President,

Global Supply Chain Management,
flexcel

J. Keith Beatty

Vice President,
Engineering & Technology
flexcel

Gary L. Beckman
Vice President, Quality Manager,
flexcel

John 8. Dick
Vice President, Chief Financial Officer,
flexcel

William N. Dykema
Vice President, General Manager,
Kimball Hospitality

Jeffrey L. Fenwick
Vice President, Marketing,
flexcel

Dirk H. Manning
Vice President, West Division,
Kimball Office

Shaun Mannix
Vice President, General Manager,
Transwall

Polly B. Kawalek+ #

Senior Vice President and President,
Quaker Foods,

PepsiCo Beverages and Foods
Director 6 years

Harry W. Bowman< #

Former President and Chief Executive
Officer of The Stiffel Company
Director 3 years

Geoffrey L. Stringer

Former Executive Vice President,

Bank One Corporation and Chief Executive
Officer, Bank One Capital Corporation
Director Elected 6/10/03

* Member of the Executive Committee of
the Board

+ Member of the Audit Committee of the Board

# Member of the Compensation Committee
of the Board

Mark Phillips
Vice President,
East Division,
Kimball Office

Dwaine R. Saalman
Vice President, South Central Division,
Kimball Office

Stanley C. Sapp
Vice President, General Manager,
Kimbali Home

Michael K. Sergesketter
Vice President, Chief Financial Officer,
Kimball Electronics Group

Spiro Vamvakas

Vice President,

European Operations,
Kimball Electronics Group

Don W. Van Winkle

Vice President, Chief Finance and
Administrative Officer,

Furniture Brands Group

Foreign Subsidiary Managers

Tosak Chobpanich
Managing Director,
Kimbali Electronics Thaitand, Ltd.

Mario Piratello
General Manager,
Kimco S.A.de C.V.

Zygmunt Witort
General Manager,
Kimbalt Electronics Poland, Sp. Zo. o.




UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-K

(Mark One)
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003

or

00 TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission File Number 0-3279

Kimball International, inc.

{Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Indiana 35-0514506
(State or other jurisdiction of (L.R.S. Employer Identification No.)
incorporation or organization)
1600 Royal Street, Jasper, Indiana 47549-1001
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

(812) 482-1600

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code

Securities registered }pmsuam to Section 12(b) of the Act:
None

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:

Title of each Class Name of each exchange on which registered
Class A Common Stock, par value $0.05 per share None
Class B Common Stock, par value $0.05 per share NASDAQ

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13
or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period
that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for
the past 90 days. Yes No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not
contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or
information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this
Form 10-K.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is an accelerated filer (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the
Exchange Act). Yes No O

The number of shares outstanding of the Registrant’s common stock as of August 15, 2003 were:
Class A Common Stock — 13,739,135 shares
Class B Common Stock — 24,337,079 shares

Class A Common Stock is not publicly traded and, therefore, no market value is available. The aggregate
market value of the Class B Common Stock held by non-affiliates, as of December 31, 2002 (the last business
day of the Registrant’s most recently completed second fiscal quarter) was $330.4 million, based upon an
estimate that 92.1% of Class B Common Stock is held by non-affiliates.

Portions of the Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Share Owners to be held on October 21,
2003, are incorporated by reference into Part I11.

The exhibit index is located on page 60.
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Forward-Looking Statements

This document may contain certain forward-looking statements. These are statements made by manage-
ment, using their best business judgement based upon facts known at the time of the statements or reasonable
estimates, about future results, plans, or future performance and business of the Company. They should not be
construed as a guarantee that such results or events will, in fact, occur or be realized. The statements may be

LR LRI 3y Edx

identified by the use of words such as “believes”, “anticipates”, “expects”, “intends”, “projects” and similar
expressions.

Such statements involve risk, uncertainty, and their ultimate validity is affected by a number of factors,
both specific and general. Specific risk factors may be noted along with the statement itself. However, other
more general risks and uncertainties which are inherent in any forward-looking statement include, but are not
necessarily limited to changes in the following:

e Demand for the Company’s product

o Relationships with strategic customers, suppliers and product distributors

o Competition in each of the Company’s product lines

o Product sales mix

e Material and component availability

¢ Domestic and international business legislation and regulation

e The ability to utilize deferred tax assets

» Technology

> General economic conditions

> Costs and/or assumptions underlying strategic decisions

> Successful implementation of new information technology systems and solutions

o QOperational capabilities in the event of natural disasters or other similar unforeseen events

This listing of factors is NOT intended to include ALL potential risk factors. The Company makes no
commitment to update these factors or to revise any forward-looking statements for events or circumstances
occurring after the statement is issued, except as required by law.

At any time when the Company makes forward-looking statements, it desires to take advantage of the

“safe harbor” which is afforded such statements under the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995
where factors could cause actual results to differ materially from forward-looking statements.




Item 1 — Business
General

As used herein, the term “Company” refers to Kimball International, Inc., the Registrant, and its
subsidiaries unless the context indicates otherwise.

The Company was incorporated in Indiana in 1939, and present management assumed control in 1950.
The corporate headquarters is located at 1600 Royal Street, Jasper, Indiana.

The Company provides a vast array of products from its two business segments: the Furniture and
Cabinets segment and the Electronic Contract Assemblies segment. The Furniture and Cabinets segment
provides furniture for the office, residential, hospitality and healthcare industries, all sold under the Company’s
family of brand names. Other products produced by the Company on a contract basis include television
cabinets and stands, residential furniture, retail infrastructure products, and forest products. The Electronic
Contract Assemblies segment provides engineering and manufacturing services on a contract basis to a variety
of industries on a global scale. Certain product lines experience seasonality which affects sales revenue flow.
Production occurs in company-owned or leased facilities located in the United States, Mexico, Thailand and
Poland. In the United States, the Company has facilities and showrooms in 14 states and the District of
Columbia.

Available Information

We make available free of charge through our website, www.ir.kimball.com, our annual report on
Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and all amendments to those
reports as soon as reasonably practicable after such material is electronically filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission. Our internet website and the information contained therein or incorporated therein
are not intended to be incorporated into this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Sales by Segment

Sales by segment, after elimination of intersegment sales, for each of the three years in the period ended
June 30, 2003 are as follows:

(Amounts in Thousands) 2003 2002 2001
Furniture and Cabinets . .......... . ... ... ... .... $ 697,651 $ 736,187 $ 871,835
Electronic Contract Assemblies .. ................... 456,719 436,248 389,252
Unallocated Corporate.................covieeiiiin. 322 69 84
Total ... . $1,154,692  $1,172,504 $1,261,171

Financial information by segment and geographic area for each of the three years in the period ended
June 30, 2003 is included in Note 14, Segment and Geographic Area Information, of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements, which can be found in Item 8, and is incorporated herein by reference.

Restructuring

In June 2001, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a plan to restructure certain operations to
more closely align the Company’s capabilities and capacities with changing market requirements and
economic conditions as well as position the Company with a more competitive cost structure vital for overall
long-term success. All actions related to the June 2001 restructuring plan have been completed.

In December 2002, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a restructuring plan comprised of
incremental cost scaling actions to more closely align the Company’s operating capacities and capabilities with
reduced demand levels related to the prolonged nature of the global economic slowdown in many of the
Company’s markets and the resulting continuation of underutilized manufacturing capacity within both of the
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Company’s segments. Overall scaling actions include the consolidation of capabilities and operations, selling
and/or exiting redundant facilities, aligning personnel costs and adjusting assets associated with scaling actions
to their current fair values. The activities associated with this restructuring plan are expected to be
substantially complete within 15 months from its inception. The plan is discussed in further detail in
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis” in Item 7 and in Note 17 of Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Segments
Furniture and Cabinets
Historical Overview

Since 1950, the Company has produced wood furniture and cabinets, which continue to be a significant
part of the business. Included in this segment are sales of office furniture, residential furniture and hospitality
and healthcare furniture. Other products within this segment include furniture and cabinets produced on a
contract basis, including cabinets for televisions, television stands, pool tables, office and residential furniture,
retail infrastructure products and other related products sold to leading manufacturers and retailers primarily
in the home entertainment, office and residential furniture and retail industries. The Company also produces
other products including polyurethane and polyester molded products and sells them to both internal and
external customers. Contract furniture manufacturing units provide rapid, customized manufacturing solutions
to the commercial, government, institutional, retail and entertainment market segments. Services of the
Company’s trucking fleet are also sold to unaffiliated customers.

Included within the forest products product line (formerly the furniture components product line) are
sales of logs, lumber, and veneer. These products are primarily sold to external customers and are also used in
certain end products of the Company.

During fiscal year 2002 the Company sold its Boesendorfer piano subsidiary, which had originally been
acquired in 1966. The Company was previously engaged in the manufacture and sales of a domestically
produced piano product line since 1857 through a predecessor, W. W. Kimball Co., acquired in 1959, until
cessation of this product line in 1996.

Locations

Office, residential, hospitality and healthcare furniture, furniture and cabinets produced on a contract
basis and related products, which make up the largest part of this segment, as of June 30, 2003 are produced at
eighteen plants; eleven located in Indiana, two in Kentucky, two in Mexico, and one each in Idaho, Tennessee
and Pennsylvania. As a result of the restructuring activities, seven manufacturing facilities not included above,
three in Indiana and one each in Kentucky, North Carolina, Florida and Mississippi, ceased operations and
five of the idled facilities remain for sale or lease. One facility in Indiana that ceased operations was converted
to a distribution and warehouse facility in fiscal year 2002, which replaced a previously leased facility.

The Company also owns and operates three sawmills, three lumberyards, and a veneer mill. These
facilities are located in Indiana, Tennessee and Kentucky. As a result of the restructuring plan announced in
the second quarter of fiscal year 2003, two facilities, not included above, which each housed dimension lumber
and contract wood products manufacturing capabilities, ceased operations.

A facility in Jasper, Indiana houses an Education Center for dealer and employee training, the Product
Design and Research Center, and a Corporate Showroom for product display.

In the United States, showrooms are maintained in ten cities for office furniture and two cities for
residential furniture. An office furniture showroom in London, England was closed as a result of the
restructuring plan announced in the second quarter of fiscal year 2003. In certain showrooms other Company
products are also on display.




Marketing Channels

Kimball Office and National brands of office furniture are marketed through Company salespersons to
end users, office furniture dealers, wholesalers, rental companies and catalog houses throughout North

America, Certain Kimball brands of office furniture systems are sold on an international basis via licensing
arrangements with unaffiliated partners. Certain fixed-wall office furniture products are marketed through
Company salespersons to the government, select office furniture dealers and construction contractors.
Residential furniture is generally marketed through independent sales representatives to independent furniture
dealers throughout the United States. Hospitality and healthcare furniture are marketed to end users using
independent manufacturers’ representatives and furniture dealers, respectively. Contract furniture and
cabinets are generally marketed to end users through Company salespersons and, to a lesser extent,
independent representatives. Forest products are primarily sold to outside customers and are also used in
certain end products of the Company. Forest products sold to outside customers are marketed principally to
end users and distributors on a global basis primarily through Company sales personnel.

Major Competitive Factors

The major competitive factors in the office furniture industry are priced in relation to quality and
appearance, the utility of the product, supplier lead-time, and ability to respond to requests for special and
non-standard products. Certain market segments are more price sensitive than others, but all segments expect
on-time, damage-free delivery. The Company maintains sufficient finished goods inventories to be able to offer
prompt shipment of certain lines of Kimball Office and National office furniture. Many products are shipped
through the Company’s delivery system, which the Company believes offers it the ability to reduce damage to
product, enhance scheduling flexibility, and improve the capability for on-time deliveries, which are all key
competitive factors in the office furniture industry.

The hospitality and healthcare furniture markets compete on quality, reliability, supplier lead-time and
price. The Company offers its own line of hospitality and healthcare furniture as well as producing contract
hospitality and healthcare furniture to customers’ specifications.

The major competitive factors in the residential furniture market are style and aesthetics, quality,
performance history, price, on-time delivery, innovation, and relative product value. The Company’s own line
of residential furniture is offered on a quick ship basis with most products available within two weeks or less.

The major competitive factors in the contract furniture and cabinet product markets are quality,
performance history, price, on-time delivery, flexibility, speed, and providing customized manufacturing
solutions. Contract residential furniture, television cabinets and television stands are produced to customer
specifications from specific orders. Finished goods inventories are generally small, consisting primarily of
goods awaiting shipment to customers. The major competitive factors in the retail infrastructure industry are
quality, supplier lead-time, price, service and installation, flexibility and on-time performance. Retail
infrastructure products are produced to customer specifications from specific orders.

Competitive factors in the forest products market are price, quality, availability and on-time delivery.

Competitors

There are numerous manufacturers of office, home, hospitality, and healthcare furniture competing
within the marketplace. The Company believes, however, that there are a limited number of relatively large
producers of wood office and hospitality furniture, of which the Company believes that it is one of the larger
producers in terms of net sales. In many instances wood office furniture competes in the market with metal
office furniture. Based on available industry statistics, metal office furniture has a larger share of the total
office furniture market. The Company has positioned itself, with acquisitions and recent product introductions,
to strengthen its market share in the non-wood segment of the industry, with products that compliment the
Company’s wood product offerings.

There are many manufacturers of residential furniture and the Company does not have a significant share
of this market.




The Company believes that it is one of the largest independent domestic manufacturers of wood
television cabinets, but certain manufacturers of televisions, including some customers of the Company,
produce cabinets for their own use. There are many manufacturers of retail infrastructure products and the
Company does not have a significant share of this market.

For forest products, the Company competes with many integrated forest and specialty hardwood product
companies and does not have a significant share of the market for such products.

Raw Material Availability

Many components used in the production of furniture and cabinets are manufactured internally within
the segment, and are generally readily available, as are other raw materials used in the production of wood
furniture, cabinets and fixtures. Raw materials used in the manufacture of metal office furniture, primarily
rolled steel and aluminum, have been readily available in the global market. Certain fabricated seating
components and wood frame assemblies as well as finished furniture products, which are generally readily
available, are sourced on a global scale in an effort to provide a quality product at the lowest cost.

Electronic Contract Assemblies

The Company entered the electronic contract assemblies market in 1985 with knowledge acquired from
the production of electronic keyboards for musical instruments, which were first produced in 1963. The
Company’s focus is on electronic assemblies that have high durability requirements such as transportation and
industrial applications. Electronics and electro-mechanical products (electronic assemblies) are sold on a
contract basis and produced to customers’ specifications.

As of June 30, 2003 the Company’s Electronic Contract Assemblies segment consists of six manufactur-
ing facilities with three located in Indiana and one each in Mexico, Thailand and Poland. In addition to the
manufacturing of electronic contract assemblies for many high durability applications, the Company also
provides value engineering services and supply chain management. As part of the restructuring plan
announced in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2001, the Company decided to exit the business of providing
DIE processing and assembly services to the European market and as a result the Company sold its
manufacturing facility located in France during fiscal year 2003. Likewise, as part of the restructuring plan
announced in the second quarter of fiscal year 2003, the Company decided to exit the domestic DIE
processing business and sold its California manufacturing facility in the latter half of fiscal year 2003.
Engineering design and support services including new product introduction services are provided to the
manufacturing facilities within this segment and to outside customers through the Kimball Electronics Design
Services company. The contract electronics manufacturing industry in general has been faced with excess
capacity due to the slowing economy. The Company has not been immune to the economic slowdown and
continually evaluates its operations as to the most optimum capacity and service levels by geographic region.

Manufacturing and design services are marketed by Company salespersons. Contract electronic assem-
blies are manufactured based on specific orders, generally resulting in a small amount of finished goods
consisting primarily of goods awaiting shipment to specific customers. Raw materials are normally acquired for
specific customer orders and may or may not be interchangeable among products. Inherent risks associated
with rapid technological changes within this contract industry are mitigated by procuring raw materials, for the
most part, based on firm orders.

Key competitive factors in the electronic contract assemblies market are competitive pricing on a global
basis, quality, engineering design services, production flexibility, reliability of on-time delivery, customer lead
time, test capability, and global presence. Growth in the electronic contract assemblies industry is created
through the proliferation of electronic components in today’s advanced products along with the continuing
trend of OEM’s in the electronic industry to subcontract the assembly process to companies with a core
competence in this area. The electronics industry is very competitive as numerous manufacturers of contract
electronic assemblies compete for business from existing and potential customers. The Company does not
have a significant share of the market for such products.
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Raw materials utilized in the manufacture of contract electronic products are generally readily available
from both domestic and foreign sources, although from time to time the industry experiences allocations of
certain components due to supply and demand forces, combined with rapid product life cycles of certain
components.

While the total electronic assemblies market has broad applications, the Company’s customers are
concentrated in the transportation, industrial controls, medical, computer and telecommunications industries.
Included in this segment are sales of electronic assemblies to one customer, TRW Automotive, Inc., a full-
service automotive supplier, which accounted for approximately 43% of this segment’s net sales in fiscal year
2003, compared to 43% and 49% in fiscal years 2002 and 2001, respectively. Sales to TRW Automotive, Inc.
accounted for approximately 17% of consolidated net sales in fiscal year 2003, compared to 16% and 15% in
fiscal years 2002 and 2001, respectively. TRW in turn sells complete braking assemblies, in part manufactured
by the Company, to several major automotive companies, most with multiple braking assembly programs that
span multiple vehicles, which partially mitigates the Company’s exposure to a single customer.

The nature of the contract electronics manufacturing industry is such that the start-up of new customers
and new programs to replace expiring programs occurs frequently. New customer and program start-ups
generally cause losses early in the life of a program, which are generally recovered as the program matures and
becomes established. The segment continues to experience margin pressures related to new program and
diversification efforts and capability expansion, both domestically and internationally.

Risk factors within this segment include, but are not limited to, general economic and market conditions,
increased globalization, rapid technological changes, component availability, capacity utilization given the
contract nature of this industry, and the importance of established program sales to one customer. The
continuing success of this segment is dependent upon its ability to replace expiring customers/programs with
new customers/programs.

Other Information
Backlog

At June 30, 2003, the aggregate sales price of production pursuant to worldwide open orders, which may
be canceled by the customer, were $239 million as compared to $247 million at June 30, 2002.

(Amounts in Millions) June 30, 2003  June 30, 2002

Furniture and Cabinets .. ...ttt $ 94 $ 97
Electronic Contract Assemblies . ............... TR 145 150
Total Backlog . ... ..ot $239 $247

Open orders as of June 30, 2003 are expected to be filled within the next fiscal year. Open orders
generally may not be indicative of future sales trends.

Research, Patents, and Trademarks

Research and development activities include the development of manufacturing processes, major process
improvements, new product development, information technology initiatives and electronic, wood and plastic
technologies.

Fiscal Years Ended
June 30,

2003 2002 2001

{(Amounts in Millions)

Research and Development Costs. ..., $17.6 8151 $14.5

The Company owns the Kimball (registered trademark) trademark, which it believes is significant to its
office, electronic, hospitality, healthcare and residential furniture businesses, and owns the following trade-
marks which it believes are significant to its furniture business only: National (registered trademark), Cetra
(registered trademark), Footprint (registered trademark), Traxx (registered trademark), Interworks
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(registered trademark) and ZWall (registered trademark). The Company also owns certain patents and other
trademarks and has certain other trademark and patent applications pending, which in the Company’s opinion
are not significant to its business.

Envivonment and Energy Matters

The Company’s operations are subject to various foreign, federal, state and local laws and regulations
with respect to environmental matters. The Company believes that it is in substantial compliance with present
laws and regulations and that there are no material liabilities related to such items.

The Company is dedicated to excellence, leadership and stewardship in matters of protecting the
environment and communities in which the Company has operations. The Company believes that continued
compliance with foreign, federal, state and local laws and regulations which have been enacted relating to the
protection of the environment will not have a material effect on its capital expenditures, earnings or
competitive position. Management believes capital expenditures for environmental control equipment during
the two fiscal years ending June 30, 2005, will not represent a material portion of total capital expenditures
during those years.

The Company’s manufacturing operations require significant amounts of energy, including natural gas
and oil. Federal and state statutes and regulations control the allocation of fuels available to the Company, but
to date the Company has experienced no interruption of production due to such regulations. In its wood
processing plants, significant energy requirements are satisfied internally by the use of the Company’s own
wood waste products.

Employees
June 30, 2003 June 30, 2002
United States .. ..ottt 5,918 6,882
Foreign Countries. . ... ... e e e 2,087 2,671
Total Full Time Employees ......... ... ... . ... ... .. 8,005 9,553

The Company has no collective bargaining agreements with respect to its domestic employees. All of the
Company’s foreign operations are subject to collective bargaining arrangements. The Company believes that
its employee relations are good.

item 2 — Properties

The location and number of the Company’s major manufacturing, warehousing, and service facilities,
including the executive and administrative offices, as of June 30, 2003, are as follows:

Number of Facilities
Furniture Electronic

and Contract Unallocated
Cabinets Assemblies Corporate Total
Indiana ......... .. 26 4 6 36
Kentucky.......... o 4 4
Tennessee . ... .. 4 4
California ......... ... .. . . i 1 1
Pennsylvania .......... .. ... .. . . l 1
Idaho . ... ... . 1 1
MeXiCOo. . . o 2 1 3
Thailand ......... ... .. .. . . e 1 1
Poland . ... ... ... . 1 1
China................. ... . i 1 . . 1
Total Facilities . ........... ... ... .. ..., 40 7 6 53

Excluded from the above listing are two idle facilities in Indiana, and one each in Kentucky, Florida and
Mississippi within the Furniture and Cabinets segment, of which two were closed as a result of the
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restructuring plan announced in June 2001 and three were closed as a result of the restructuring plan
announced in December 2002 and are being held for sale or lease as of June 30, 2003.

The listed facilities occupy approximately 7,735,000 square feet in aggregate, of which approximately

6,970,000 square feet are owned and 765,000 square feet are leased. Square footage of these facilities is
summarized as follows:

Approximate Square Footage

Furniture Electronic
and Centract Unallocated
Cabinets Assemblies Corporate Total

5,932,000 678,000 360,000 6,970,000
639,000 99,000 27,000 765,000

6,571,000 777,000 387,000 7,735,000

Including certain leased furniture showroom areas and idle facilities excluded from the above listing, total
facilities approximate 8.6 million square feet. (See Note 5 — Commitments and Contingent Liabilities of the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8, for additional information concerning leases.)

Included in Unallocated Corporate are executive, national sales and administrative offices, a recycling
storage facility, a child development facility for employees’ children, and an education center and corporate
showroom.

Generally, properties are utilized at normal capacity levels on a single shift basis with certain properties
utilizing second shifts and third shifts. At times, certain facilities utilize a reduced second or third shift. Due to
sales fluctuations, not all facilities were utilized at normal capacity during the 2003 fiscal year.

Significant loss of income resulting from a facility catastrophe would be partially offset by business
interruption insurance coverage.

Operating leases for all facilities, including idle facilities, total 984,000 square feet and expire from fiscal
year 2004-2013 with many of the leases subject to renewal options. Also included are 10 leased showroom
facilities totaling 103,000 square feet, which are in eight states and the District of Columbia.

The Company owns approximately 28,500 acres of land which includes land where various Company
facilities reside, including approximately 27,500 acres generally for hardwood timber reserves, approximately
180 acres of land in the Kimball Industrial Park, Jasper, Indiana (a site for certain production and other
facilities, and for possible future expansions), and approximately 60 acres in Post Falls, Idaho, where a
manufacturing plant is located. The Company leases approximately six acres of land in Laem Chabang,
Thailand where it has an Electronics manufacturing facility, with the lease expiring in 2030.

Item 3 — Legal Proceedings

The Registrant and its subsidiaries are not parties to any material pending legal proceedings, other than
ordinary routine litigation incidental to the business, which individually, or in aggregate, are not expected to be
material.

Item 4 — Submission of Matters to Vote of Security Holders

None to report in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2003.
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Executive Officers of the Registrant
The executive officers of the Registrant as of August 31, 2003 are as follows:
(Age as of August 31, 2003)

Officer

Name Age Office and Area of Responsibility Since

Douglas A. Habig .................. 56  Chairman of the Board of Directors, 1975
Chief Executive Officer

James C. Thyen.................... 59  President, Director 1974

John T.Thyen .................. ... 65  Senior Executive Vice President, 1978
Director

Robert F. Schneider ................ 42  Executive Vice President, Chief 1992
Financial Officer, Treasurer

Donald D. Charron ................. 40  Executive Vice President, President, 1999
Kimball Electronics Group

P.Daniel Miller.................... 55  Executive Vice President, President, 2000
Furniture Brands Group

J.Brent Elliott ..................... 45  Executive Vice President, President, 2001
flexcel

Michelle R. Schroeder .............. 38  Corporate Controller 2003
(functioning as Principal Accounting
Officer)

Executive officers are elected annually by the Board of Directors. James C. Thyen and John T. Thyen are
brothers. All of the executive officers unless otherwise noted have been employed by the Company for more
than the past five years in the capacity shown or some other executive capacity. Donald D. Charron was
employed with Rockwell Automation/Allen Bradley from December 1992 to April 1999, as Operations
Manager, Director of Operations, and General Business Manager Electronic Operator Interface. P. Daniel
Miller was employed with International Knife and Saw, Inc. as President and CEO from April 1999 to April
2000, with the Overhead Door Corporation as President from May 1998 to April 1999, and from January 1987
to December 1997 with the Whirlpool Corporation in various capacities including President Latin American
Appliance Group, Executive Vice President Whirlpool Corporation, President Kenmore Appliance Group,
Vice President Sales and Distribution Whirlpool Appliance Group, and Division Vice President Builder
Marketing. J. Brent Elliott was employed with Ingersoll Rand from June 1980 to May 2000 most recently as
President, Steelcraft Division and Group Controller, Door Hardware Group. Michelle R. Schroeder was
appointed to her current position in August 2002, having previously served the Company as Assistant
Corporate Controller and Director of Financial Analysis.
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PART II

Item 5 — Market for Registrant’s Common Stock and Related Share Owner Matters
Market Prices

The Company’s Class B Common Stock trades on the NASDAQ Stock Market under the symbol:
KBALB. High and low price ranges by quarter for the last two fiscal years as quoted by the National
Association of Security Dealers (NASDAQ) are as follows:

2003 2002
High Low High Low
First Quarter...........oviiiii i, $16.8600 $13.0000 $16.2900 $11.8400
Second Quarter ............... ... $16.5000  $12.7100 $15.6000  $10.5400
Third Quarter. ................ . ... $15.5400 $12.4950 $17.1500 $14.1500
Fourth Quarter.............cocvvveuuino. .. $16.2500 $13.6100 $17.7600  $14.1500

There is no active trading market for the Company’s Class A Common Stock.

Dividends

There are no restrictions on the payment of dividends except charter provisions that require on a fiscal
year basis, shares of Class B Common Stock are entitled to an additional $0.02 per share dividend more than
the dividends paid on Class A Common Stock, provided that dividends are paid on the Company’s Class A
Common Stock. During fiscal year 2003 dividends declared were $24.1 million or $0.62 per share on Class A
Common Stock and $0.64 per share on Class B Common Stock. Dividends by quarter for 2003 compared to
2002 are as follows:

2003 2002
Class A Class B Class A Class B
First Quarter ... ....ooovviit et $0.155  $0.16  $0.155  $0.16
Second Quarter. . ... $0.155  $0.16  $0.155  $0.16
Third Quarter ... ...t $0.155  $0.16  $0.155  $0.16
Fourth Quarter ........ ... ... . i $0.155  $0.16  $0.155  $0.16
Total Dividends. . .............. .. ... .. $0.620  $0.64  $0.620  $0.64

Share Owners

On July 31, 2003, the Company’s Class A Common Stock was owned by approximately 638 Share
Owners of record and the Company’s Class B Common Stock by approximately 2,127 Share Owners of
record, of which approximately 315 also owned Class A Common Stock.
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Item & — Selected Financial Data

Year Ended June 30

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts) 2603 2002 2001 2000 1999
NetSales ... in.. $1,154,692 $1,172,504 $1,261,171 $1,228,412 $1,131,261
Net Income ................ .. ...... $ 5594 $ 34500 $ 16,583 § 48462 $ 359,725
Earnings Per Share
Basic:
Class A ..o $ 013 §$ 089 § 041 $ 1.19 § 1.46
Class B ... oo i $ 0.15 § 091 $ 043 § 1.21 § 1.48
Diluted:
Class A ... o $ 0.13 § 089 $ 041 §$ 1.19 § 1.45
Class B ... ... o i $ 0.15 § 091 § 043 $ 121 § 1.47
Total Assets ..o, $ 615,644 § 674,112 $ 678984 § 723,651 § 661,386

Long Term Debt, Less Current Maturities $ 833 § 2,291 § 3,320 § 2,599 § 1,730

Cash Dividends Per Share:
Class A . ... i $ 062 §$ 062 § 062 $ 062 $ 0.62
Class B ... .. . o $ 064 §% 0.64 $ 0.64 $ 0.64 $% 0.64

Fiscal year 2003 net income includes $11.7 million ($0.31 per diluted share) of after-tax restructuring
and other expenses.

Fiscal year 2002 net income includes an $8.2 million after-tax gain ($0.22 per diluted share) from the

sale of the Company’s Boesendorfer subsidiary and after-tax expenses related to restructuring of $0.3 million
($0.01 per diluted share).

Fiscal year 2001 net income was reduced by $19.7 million ($0.51 per diluted share) for after-tax
restructuring and other expenses.

Fiscal year 1999 results include a $1.3 million after-tax gain ($0.03 per diluted share) on the sale of a
stock investment of which the Company held a minor interest and a $2.7 million after-tax gain ($0.06 per
diluted share) on the disposition of two non-core operating facilities.

Item 7 — Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Overview

Net sales of $1,154,692,000 were recorded in fiscal year 2003, compared to net sales of $1,172,504,000 in
fiscal 2002. Fiscal year 2003 net income was $5,594,000, or $0.15 per Class B diluted share, inclusive of after-
tax restructuring and other charges totaling $11,743,000, or $0.31 per Class B diluted share, Net income and
Class B diluted earnings per share for fiscal year 2002 were $34,500,000 and $0.91, respectively, including an
$8,151,000, or $0.22 per Class B diluted share, gain on the sale of a piano subsidiary and after-tax
restructuring expense of $317,000, or $0.01 per Class B diluted share.

Restructuring and Other Expense

In November of fiscal year 2003, an electronics facility in France was sold as committed in the June 2001
restructuring plan. With this sale, the Company has completed all actions relating to the June 2001
restructuring plan.
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During the second quarter of fiscal year 2003, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a restructuring
plan comprised of incremental cost scaling actions to more closely align the Company’s operating capacities
and capabilities with reduced demand levels related to the prolonged nature of the global economic slowdown
in many of the Company’s markets and the resulting continuation of underutilized manufacturing capacity

within both of the Company’s segments. Overall scaling actions include the consolidation of capabilities and
operations, selling and/or exiting redundant facilities, aligning personnel costs and adjusting assets associated
with scaling actions to their current fair values. The Company is executing the restructuring plan and expects
restructuring activities to be substantially complete within 15 months of the plan inception which is three
months ahead of the original schedule.

As a result of the above outlined activities, the Company incurred a pre-tax restructuring charge of
$13.4 million in fiscal year 2003. Included in the fiscal year 2003 restructuring charge is $7.4 million for asset
write-downs, $2.5 million for employee transition and other employee costs, and $3.5 million for plant closure
and other exit costs.

Unrelated to the above described restructuring plan, in the second quarter of fiscal year 2003 the
Company recorded a pre-tax charge of $8.0 million for asset impairment within the Furniture and Cabinets
segment to align the carrying values of long-lived assets at the Company’s veneer operations with their fair
values. This charge is included on the restructuring and other line of the consolidated statements of income.
(See Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements for more information regarding restructuring and other
charges.) '

Based on costs incurred to date and the latest cost estimates, the Company estimates total pre-tax
restructuring and other costs to be approximately $25 million, as compared to the original estimate of
$30 million. The decrease is primarily due to lower employee transition and other employee costs in addition
to lower plant closure and other exit costs.

Management estimates that once the restructuring actions are completed, they will reduce the Com-
pany’s total cost structure by approximately $20 to $25 million on an annualized pre-tax basis, with part of the
savings to be redeployed into strategic initiatives designed to accelerate sales growth, and improve quality and
efficiencies. As originally estimated, cost savings are being realized gradually and management expects to
continue to realize additional cost savings resulting from the restructuring activities as the actions are
completed. The preceding statements are forward-looking statements under the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act of 1995 and are subject to certain risks and uncertainties including, but not limited to, successful
execution of the restructuring plan, a significant change in economic conditions, loss of key customers or
suppliers within specific industries, or similar unforeseen events.

Results of Operations
2003 Discussion

Fiscal year 2003 consolidated net sales decreased 2% from a year ago as decreased sales in the Company’s
Furniture and Cabinets segment more than offset increased sales in the Company’s Electronic Contract
Assemblies segment. Fiscal year 2003 consolidated net income declined compared to the prior fiscal year as
Furniture and Cabinets segment net earnings declined as compared to a year ago at a faster pace than net
income in the Electronic Contract Assemblies segment increased over the prior year.

Furniture and Cabinets Segment

Product line offerings included in the Furniture and Cabinets segment are office furniture, residential
furniture and hospitality and healthcare furniture, all sold under the Company’s family of brand names. Other
products produced within this segment on a contract basis include television cabinets and stands, residential
furniture, office furniture and retail infrastructure products. Forest products (formerly furniture components)
are primarily sold to outside customers and are used in certain end products of the Company. The Company’s
production flexibility allows it to utilize portions of the available production capacity created by lower volumes
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within these product lines to support and balance increased production schedules of other product lines within
this segment.

The Furniture and Cabinets segment’s net sales for fiscal year 2003 declined 5% when compared to the
prior fiscal year as increased sales of forest products and hospitality and healthcare furniture were offset by
sales reductions in the other major product lines in the current year as well as the sale of the Boesendorfer
piano subsidiary, which was sold in fiscal year 2002.

Current year net sales in the office furniture product line decreased from the sales volumes recorded in
fiscal year 2002 due to an overall decline in demand within the office furniture industry. A prior year list price
increase was partially offset by increased price discounting in fiscal year 2003 driven by continued pricing
pressures in the soft office furniture markets. Open orders at June 30, 2003 were higher than open orders at
June 30, 2002.

Hospitality and healthcare product line sales increased in fiscal year 2003 from the previous year as the
industry has experienced modest growth. Sales mix of standard product offerings, which generally carry a
higher margin, increased in fiscal year 2003 as compared to fiscal year 2002; however, the recent quarterly
trend shows a sales mix shift towards custom product. Open orders at June 30, 2003 were higher than open
orders at June 30, 2002.

Fiscal year 2003 contract manufacturing net sales declined from the prior year. Within this product line,
sales of large-screen projection television cabinets produced on a contract basis remained relatively flat, while
sales of contract furniture decreased when compared to the prior year. At June 30, 2003, open orders for the
contract manufacturing product line were less than open orders at June 30, 2002.

Net sales in the forest products product line increased significantly in fiscal year 2003, compared to the
prior year. Increased sales of lumber and veneer products more than offset the decreased sales of dimension
products, which were down as a result of the Company’s election to exit two wood dimension manufacturing
facilities during the second quarter of fiscal year 2003. Open orders for forest products as of June 30, 2003
were higher than open orders as of June 30, 2002.

The Furniture and Cabinets segment produced a net loss in fiscal year 2003, compared to the net income
realized in fiscal 2002 due to lower sales volumes and resulting operating inefficiencies. When excluding
current and prior fiscal year after-tax restructuring activity and other costs of $10.1 million and $1.0 million
respectively, and a prior year after-tax gain of $8.2 million associated with the sale of the piano subsidiary, the
segment still recorded a net loss in the current year as compared to net income in the prior year. (See Note 17
to the consolidated financial statements for more information on restructuring and other charges.) Gross
profit, as a percent of sales, decreased from fiscal 2002 primarily due to production inefficiencies caused in part
by lower volume levels and higher material costs, as a percent of sales. Material costs, as a percent of net sales,
increased in fiscal year 2003 compared to a year ago in part due to a fiscal year 2002 benefit from a liquidation
of LIFO (last-in, first-out) inventory quantities carried at lower costs prevailing in prior years, the effect of
which increased net income by approximately $1.4 million or $0.04 per Class B share. Higher material costs,
as a percent of net sales, within the forest products product line in the current year were also a contributing
factor to the higher segment material costs, as a percent of sales. Labor and overhead costs, as a percent of
sales, increased slightly in fiscal year 2003 over the prior year as the reduction in sales outpaced labor and
overhead cost reductions. Furniture and Cabinet segment fiscal year 2003 selling, general, and administrative
spending decreased in absolute dollars and as a percent of net sales from the prior year reflecting the
Company’s efforts to align its cost structure with declining sales. Fiscal year 2003 net losses in the forest
products product line, which totaled $15.4 million, or $0.40 per Class B diluted share, inclusive of $6.8 million,
or $0.18 per share relating to after-tax restructuring and other charges, continue to affect overall segment
profitability. However, improvement within the forest products product line is evident exclusive of restructur-
ing and other charges as losses improved in the latter half of fiscal 2003 due to continued operating efficiency
improvements, the exit of the wood dimension operations in the second quarter of fiscal 2003, and the exit of
the face veneer operation early in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003. Improvement in this product line is
dependent upon the Company achieving its planned higher volume levels and associated improvements in
operating efficiencies. The contract manufacturing product line produced a net loss in fiscal year 2003, which
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is a decline from the net income realized in fiscal year 2002 in part due to depressed and unstable demand
levels in the markets it supports leading to pricing pressures and production inefficiencies.

Risk factors within this segment include, but are not limited to, general economic and market conditions,
increased global competition, and relationships with strategic customers and product distributors. Additional
risk factors that could have an effect on the Company’s performance are located on page 3.

Electronic Contract Assemblies Segment

Net sales for fiscal year 2003 surpassed the prior year by 5% in the Electronic Contract Assemblies
segment. Increased sales of electronic transportation products and industrial controls in fiscal year 2003 more
than offset decreases in sales of computer related products and telecommunications components. Fiscal year
2003 sales of medical components were flat as compared to the prior year.

Due to increased sales volumes and improved operating efficiencies at certain previously underperforming
manufacturing locations, fiscal year 2003 net income improved from fiscal 2002. Fiscal year 2003 income
included after-tax restructuring expense of $1.8 million primarily for asset write-downs relating to the sale of
the facility in California. (See Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements for more information on
restructuring charges.) Gross profit, as a percent of sales, increased in fiscal year 2003 from the prior year
primarily from improvements in previously underperforming manufacturing locations and associated lower
labor costs as a percent of net sales. Selling, general and administrative expenses increased, as a percent of net
sales, when compared to the prior fiscal year primarily due to administrative costs related to the start up of new
customer programs which will not result in sales until future quarters and costs relating to the implementation
of new information systems.

Included in this segment are sales to one customer, TRW Automotive, Inc., a full-service automotive
supplier, which accounted for 17% and 16% of consolidated net sales in fiscal years 2003 and 2002,
respectively. Sales to this customer accounted for 43% of the total sales in the Electronic Contract Assemblies
segment in both fiscal years 2003 and 2002. TRW Automotive in turn sells complete braking assemblies, in
part manufactured by the Company, to several major automotive companies, most with multiple braking
assembly programs that span multiple vehicles, which partially mitigates the Company’s exposure to a single
customer.

The nature of the contract electronics manufacturing industry is such that the start-up of new customers
and new programs to replace expiring programs occurs frequently. New customer and program start-ups
generally cause losses early in the life of a program, which are generally recovered as the program matures and
becomes established. Despite the current year improvement, this segment continues to experience margin
pressures related to an overall excess capacity position in the electronics subcontracting services market and
more specifically this segment’s new customer and program diversification efforts.

During the second quarter of fiscal year 2002, the Company purchased an electronics manufacturing
facility located in Auburn, Indiana from Siemens VDQ. In the first quarter of fiscal 2003, the Company sold
an electronics facility in France and in the third quarter of fiscal year 2003, the Company sold a
microelectronics facility in California. The fiscal year 2003 Electronic Contract Assemblies segment operating
result comparisons to fiscal year 2002 were not materially affected by the aggregate of these three actions.

Risk factors within this segment include, but are not limited to, general economic and market conditions,
increased globalization, rapid technological changes, component availability, the contract nature of this
industry, and the importance of sales to one customer. The continuing success of this segment is dependent
upon its ability to replace expiring customers/programs with new customers/programs. Additional risk factors
that could have an effect on the Company’s performance are located on page 3.

Consolidated Operations

Consolidated sales mix by business segment in fiscal 2003 shifted by three percentage points compared to
the prior year. The Furniture and Cabinets segment net sales were 60% of consolidated net sales in fiscal 2003
compared to 63% of consolidated net sales in the prior year, while the Electronic Contract Assemblies
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segment fiscal 2003 net sales were 40% of consolidated net sales compared to 37% in the prior year. The
Furniture and Cabinets segment generally carries a higher gross profit percentage and higher selling, generai
and administrative costs, as a percent of sales, compared to the Electronic Contract Assemblies segment.

Consolidated selling, general and administrative expenses declined in absolute dollars and as a percent of
net sales in fiscal year 2003 when compared to fiscal 2002. The reduction in SG&A expenses was primarily
due to management’s efforts to scale the Company to reduced sales volume levels, which resulted in the exit of
seven manufacturing facilities and one sales office during fiscal year 2003. SG&A expenses also declined in
fiscal year 2003 due to lower incentive compensation costs, which are linked to Company profitability.

Pre-tax restructuring and other charges of $21.4 million were recorded in fiscal year 2003. (See Note 17
to the consolidated financial statements for more information on restructuring and other charges.)

Other income decreased from the prior year primarily due to a prior year pre-tax gain of $15.4 million
related to the sale of the Boesendorfer subsidiary. Both interest income and interest expense declined from the
prior year as a result of lower interest rates, lower average investment balances and lower outstanding balances
on the Company’s revolving line of credit.

The effective income tax rate decreased 20.1 percentage points in fiscal year 2003 compared to fiscal 2002
as the federal effective tax rate declined from a year ago and the state effective tax rate increased in fiscal
2003. The reduced effective tax rate is partially due to a much lower profit before income tax base coupled
with relatively stable amounts of tax benefits associated with the Company’s investment in tax free municipal
bonds and research and development activities. In addition, tax benefits related to the donation of an idled
facility and from the sale of an electronics manufacturing facility in France, both of which were restructuring
activities, also reduced the fiscal year 2003 effective tax rate.

2002 Discussion

Net sales in fiscal year 2002 declined from the prior year in the Company’s Furniture and Cabinets
segment while net sales in the Electronic Contract Assemblies segment increased over fiscal year 2001. Net
income in fiscal 2002 increased from fiscal 2001 in the Furniture and Cabinets segment including restructuring
costs and the 2002 gain on the sale of a subsidiary. The Electronic Contract Assemblies segment’s net income
in fiscal year 2002 increased from fiscal year 2001 including operating results from a 2002 fiscal year
acquisition, restructuring charges in both years and a fiscal 2001 charge for impaired goodwill unrelated to the
restructuring.

Furniture and Cabinets Segment

Product line offerings included in the Furniture and Cabinets segment are office furniture, residential
furniture, hospitality and healthcare furniture, furniture and cabinets produced on a contract basis and forest
products. The Company’s production flexibility allows it to utilize portions of the available production capacity
created by lower volumes within these product lines to support and balance increased production schedules of
other product lines within this segment.

In the third quarter of fiscal year 2002, the Company sold its Boesendorfer piano subsidiary, located in
Vienna, Austria, to BAWAG-Bank of Austria. Included in the Company’s fiscal year 2002 consolidated
statement of income is an $8.2 million after-tax gain on this sale, which increased Class B diluted earnings per
share by $0.22. Proceeds from this sale were used for general corporate purposes, including funding for
strategic initiatives designed to accelerate sales growth and improve operations.

The Furniture and Cabinets segment’s net sales for fiscal year 2002 declined by 16% from the record sales
reported in fiscal year 2001 as the Company experienced double-digit percentage sales declines in all the
major product lines within this segment.

Sales in the office furniture product line decreased from the sales volumes recorded in fiscal year 2001
primarily as a result of an overall shrinking of the office furniture market. Overall price discounting increased
in fiscal year 2002 from fiscal 2001 driven by increased competitive pricing pressures resulting from the
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continued softness in this market. Sales of casegoods, systems and seating products all declined from fiscal
2001. In fiscal 2002, the Company’s office furniture sales declined by less than the industry’s overall 25%
decline for the same period compared to the year earlier, as reported by the Business and Institutional
Furniture Manufacturer’s Association (BIFMA).

Hospitality and healthcare product line sales decreased significantly in fiscal year 2002 from the previous
year, which is believed to be the result of an overall decline in construction and renovations in the hospitality
industry. The percentage of sales from custom-made product within this product line, which generally carries
a lower margin than the Company’s standard product offerings, declined in fiscal year 2002 compared to a year
earlier. Open orders at June 30, 2002 were up slightly over open orders at June 30, 2001.

Fiscal year 2002 net sales in contract furniture and cabinets declined from prior year sales by a low
double-digit percentage rate. Within this product line however, overall sales of large-screen projection
television cabinets produced on a contract basis increased slightly over the prior year assisted partly by a price
increase to one of the Company’s customers in mid-fiscal 2001.

Net sales in the forest products product line decreased significantly in fiscal year 2002, compared to the
prior year, driven by large decreases in sales of dimension and [umber products. Veneer sales increased in fiscal
year 2002 over the same period in the prior year.

Inclusive of fiscal 2002 and 2001 after-tax restructuring charges of $1.0 million and $13.2 million,
respectively, and the fiscal 2002 $8.2 million after-tax gain on the sale of the Boesendorfer piano subsidiary,
Furniture and Cabinets segment net income increased to $20.4 million from $6.9 million in fiscal 2001, The
after-tax restructuring charges of $1.0 million recorded in the Furniture and Cabinets segment in fiscal 2002
were primarily a result of plant consolidation costs and additional asset write-downs. Gross profit, as a percent
of sales, increased from fiscal 2001 resulting from lower material and labor costs, as a percent of sales.
Overhead costs, as a percent of sales, increased in fiscal year 2002 over the prior year as the reduction in sales
outpaced cost reductions. Also contributing to the improved margins in this segment in fiscal year 2002,
compared to the prior year, were inventory reduction initiatives that resulted in a liquidation of LIFO (last-in,
first-out) inventory quantities carried at lower costs prevailing in prior years, the effect of which increased net
income by approximately $1.4 million or $0.04 per Class B share. The forest products product line continued
to negatively affect the profitability in this segment as fiscal 2002 bottom-line results were impacted by the
significant sales volume reduction in dimension and lumber products compared to the prior year. Market
conditions within the forest products product line remained very challenging based on depressed demand
levels and pressures on lumber and veneer commodity prices due, in part, to excess capacity within this
market. Gross profit at the Company’s projection television cabinet operation in Juarez, Mexico improved
slightly in fiscal year 2002, compared to fiscal year 2001, despite a lower sales volume. This segment’s selling,
general and administrative (SG&A) spending in fiscal year 2002 decreased in absolute dollars but increased as
a percent of sales, compared to the prior year, as sales volume declined at a faster rate than spending.

Electronic Contract Assemblies Segment

During the second quarter of fiscal year 2002, the Company purchased a manufacturing facility located in
Auburn, Indiana from Siemens VDO. The Company assumed ownership of the facility and most of the
equipment and retained a large portion of the workforce. With the acquisition, the Company began to produce
an electronics module for an automotive passenger safety system and a line of small engine ignition products.
The acquisition was financed with available cash on hand. The acquisition price was not significant in relation
to the Company’s consolidated financial position.

Net sales for fiscal year 2002 surpassed the prior year by 12% in the Electronic Contract Assemblies
segment. Excluding the Auburn facility acquisition, comparable sales in the Electronic Contract Assemblies
segment increased by 2% over the previous year. Sales of electronic transportation products in fiscal 2002
increased over the prior year, even when excluding sales to this market from the new Auburn facility, which is
attributed to the increase in automotive demand resulting largely from industry-wide consumer incentive
programs. Sales of medical components and industrial controls in fiscal 2002 also increased over the prior year
while sales of telecommunication and computer related products declined compared to fiscal 2001. The
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contract electronics manufacturing industry in general has been faced with excess capacity due to the slowing
economy. The Company has not been immune and continually evaluates its operations as to the most
optimum capacity and service levels by geographic region.

Net income of $13.5 million in fiscal year 2002 increased over fiscal year 2001 net income of $7.2 million,
when including fiscal 2002 after-tax restructuring income of $0.6 million and fiscal 2001 after-tax restructuring
expense of $4.0 million, and a fiscal 2001 after-tax charge of $1.6 million for impaired goodwill unrelated to
the restructuring. Operations from the new Auburn facility contributed to the net income increase. The after-
tax restructuring income of $0.6 million recorded in fiscal 2002 was related primarily to adjustments to original
cost estimates. Gross profit, as a percent of sales, declined in fiscal year 2002 from the prior year, largely
related to operational inefficiencies on the production of new products primarily at the Company’s Poznan,
Poland operation. The fiscal 2002 Auburn facility acquisition provided positive bottom-line contribution along
with new product and customer diversification. Selling, general and administrative expenses in fiscal 2002
remained flat, as a percent of sales, with the prior year. Lower selling expenses, largely related to a fiscal 2001
write-down of accounts receivable associated with a financially unstable contract customer, offset increases in
administrative costs and incentive compensation costs, which are linked to company profitability.

Included in this segment are sales to one customer, TRW, Inc., a full-service automotive supplier, which
accounted for 16% and 15% of consolidated net sales in fiscal years 2002 and 2001, respectively. Sales to this
customer accounted for 43% and 49% of the total sales in the Electronic Contract Assemblies segment in fiscal
2002 and 2001, respectively. TRW in turn sells complete braking assemblies, in part manufactured by the
Company, to several major automotive companies, most with multiple braking assembly programs that span
multiple vehicles, which partially mitigates the Company’s exposure to a single customer.

The nature of the contract electronics manufacturing industry is such that the start-up of new customers
and new programs to replace expiring programs occurs frequently. New customer and program start-ups
generally cause losses early in the life of a program, which are offset by higher profitability as the program
matures and becomes established. In 2002, the Company had a higher concentration of new customer and
program start-ups than in prior years due to its focused customer and program diversification efforts and
capability expansion, both domestically and internationally, which reduced current year earnings.

Risk factors within this segment include increased globalization, rapid technological changes, component
availability, capacity utilization given the contract nature of this industry, and the importance of established
program sales to one customer. The continuing success of this segment is dependent upon its ability to replace
expiring customers/programs with new customers/programs.

Consolidated Operations

Consolidated sales mix by business segment in fiscal 2002 shifted by six percentage points from the
Furniture and Cabinets segment (63%) to the Electronic Contract Assemblies segment (37%) compared to
the prior year. Fiscal 2001 consolidated sales mix included 69% of sales from the Furniture and Cabinets
segment and 31% of sales from the Electronic Contract Assemblies segment. The Furniture and Cabinets
segment generally carries a higher gross profit percentage and higher selling, general and administrative costs,
as a percent of sales, compared to the Electronic Contract Assemblies segment.

Consolidated selling, general and administrative expenses decreased in absolute dollars but increased, as a
percent of sales, 0.9 percentage point, in fiscal year 2002 when compared to fiscal 2001. Lower selling
expenses, in both absolute dollars and as a percent of sales, were more than offset by higher administrative and
incentive compensation costs.

Other income in fiscal 2002 increased from the prior year primarily from a pre-tax gain of $15.4 million
related to the sale of the Boesendorfer subsidiary. Both interest income and interest expense in fiscal 2002
declined from the prior year as a result of lower interest rates, lower average investment balances and lower
outstanding balances on the Company’s revolving line of credit. Fiscal year 2002 miscellaneous income was
down from fiscal 2001.

The effective income tax rate, including the impact from fiscal 2002 and 2001 restructuring and other
charges, decreased 5.3 percentage points in fiscal year 2002, compared to fiscal 2001. The federal effective tax
rate declined from fiscal 2001, while the state effective tax rate increased in fiscal 2002, on the same
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comparable basis. A lower effective tax rate on the gain from the sale of Boesendorfer, resulting from a higher
tax basis, favorably impacted both the federal and state effective tax rates in fiscal 2002. An overall increase in

domestic tax expense and a higher percentage of foreign income in fiscal 2001 combined to increase the state
effective rate in fiscal 2002 compared to the prior year.

Fiscal year 2002 net income was $34.5 million, or $0.91 per Class B diluted share, inclusive of after-tax
restructuring charges of $0.3 million, or $0.01 per Class B diluted share and the $8.2 million, or $0.22 per
Class B diluted share, after-tax gain on the sale of the Boesendorfer subsidiary. Fiscal year 2001 net income
was $16.6 million, or $0.43 per Class B diluted share, inclusive of after-tax restructuring charges of
$19.7 million, or $0.51 per Class B diluted share.

Several of the Company’s principal markets remained soft during a very challenging economic time.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Company’s cash, cash equivalents, and short-term investments increased from $73 million at the end
of fiscal year 2002 to $82 million at the end of fiscal year 2003. Net cash provided by operating activities
exceeded net cash used for investing and financing activities during fiscal year 2003. Working capital at
June 30, 2003 was $201 million compared to working capital of $188 million at June 30, 2002. The current
ratio was 2.5 at June 30, 2003 compared to 2.1 at June 30, 2002.

Operating activities generated $57 million of cash flow in fiscal year 2003 compared to $77 million in
fiscal year 2002. The Company reinvested $34 million into capital investments for the future, including
manufacturing equipment and improvements to the Company’s information technology systems and solutions.
The Company expects to continue to invest in resources for leveraging new and improved enterprise-wide
information technology systems and solutions. Investing activities also included $5 million provided by the sale
of facilities and subsidiaries. Financing cash flow activities included $24 million in dividend payments, which
remained flat with fiscal year 2002.

At June 30, 2003, the Company did not have any short-term borrowings outstanding under its
$100 million revolving credit facility, which expires in May 2004, that allows for both issuance of letters of
credit and cash borrowings. However, the Company issued $4.8 million in letters of credit against the credit
facility, which reduces total availability to borrow to $95.2 million as of June 30, 2003. The Company did not
have any short-term borrowings outstanding under this credit facility at June 30, 2002. The credit facility
requires the Company to comply with certain debt covenants including debt-to-total capitalization, interest
coverage ratio, minimum net worth, and other terms and conditions. The Company is in compliance with
these covenants at June 30, 2003. (See Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements for more information
on the credit facility.)

The Company believes its principal sources of liquidity from available funds on hand, cash generated
from operations and the availability of borrowing under the Company’s revolving credit facility will be
sufficient in fiscal year 2004 for working capital needs and for funding investments in the Company’s future,
including potential acquisitions. The Company’s primary source of funds is its ability to generate cash from
operations to meet its liquidity obligations, which could be affected by factors such as a decline in demand for
the Company’s products, loss of key contract customers, the ability of the Company to generate profits, and
other unforeseen circumstances. The Company’s secondary source of funds is its revolving credit facility,
which is contingent on complying with certain debt covenants and the Company does not expect the covenants
to limit or restrict its ability to borrow on the facility in fiscal year 2004. The Company anticipates maintaining
a strong liquidity position for the 2004 fiscal year. The Company intends to replace the current credit facility
when it expires in May 2004.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Company’s off-balance sheet arrangements are limited to guarantees, which are contingent on the
future performance of another entity. However, these arrangements do not have a material current effect and
are not reasonably likely to have a material future effect on the Company’s financial condition, results of
operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources. The Company does not have material exposures
to trading activities of non-exchange traded contracts or transactions with related parties.
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Critical Accounting Policies

The Company’s consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These principles require the use of estimates
and assumptions that affect amounts reported and disclosed in the consolidated financial statements and
related notes. Actual results could differ from these estimates and assumptions. Management uses its best
judgement in the assumptions used to value these estimates, which are based on current facts and
circumstances, prior experience, and other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable. Kimball manage-
ment overlays a fundamental philosophy of valuing its assets and liabilities in an appropriately conservative
manner. A summary of Kimball’s significant accounting policies is disclosed in Note 1 to the consolidated
financial statements. Management believes the following critical accounting policies reflect the more
significant judgements and estimates used in preparation of the Company’s consolidated financial statements,
and are the policies that are most critical in the portrayal of the Company’s financial position and results of
operations. Management has discussed these critical accounting policies and estimates with the Audit
Commiittee of the Company’s Board of Directors and with the Company’s independent auditors.

Revenue recognition — The Company recognizes revenue when title and risk transfer to the customer,
which under the terms and conditions of the sale may occur either at the time of shipment or when the
product is delivered to the customer. Service revenue is recognized as services are rendered. Guidelines
regarding revenue recognition are strictly adhered to and volatility resulting from estimates or judgement is
minimal.

o Allowance for sales returns — At the time revenue is recognized certain provisions may also be
recorded, including returns and allowances, which involve estimates based on current discussions with
applicable customers, historical experience with a particular customer and/or product, and other
relevant factors. As such, these factors may change over time causing the provisions to be adjusted
accordingly. At June 30, 2003 and June 30, 2002 the reserve for returns and allowances was
$2.8 million and $2.7 million, respectively. Over the past three years, the returns and allowances
reserve has been approximately 1% to 2% of gross trade receivables.

o Allowance for doubtful accounts — Allowance for doubtful accounts is generally based on a percentage
of aged accounts receivable, where the percentage increases as the accounts receivable become older.
However, management judgement is utilized in the final determination of the allowance based on
several factors including specific analysis of a customer’s credit worthiness, changes in a customer’s
payment history, historical bad debt experience, and general economic and market trends. The
allowance for doubtful accounts at June 30, 2003 and 2002 was $4.9 million and $4.2 million,
respectively, and over the past three years, this reserve has trended between approximately 2% and 4%
of gross trade accounts receivable.

Excess and obsolete inventory — Inventories were valued using the lower of last-in, first-out (LIFO) cost
or market value for approximately 51% and 37% of consolidated inventories in 2003 and 2002, respectively,
including approximately 91% and 85% of the Furniture and Cabinets segment inventories in 2003 and 2002,
respectively. The remaining inventories are valued at lower of first-in, first-out (FIFO) cost or market value.
FIFO inventory recorded on the Company’s balance sheet is adjusted for excess and obsolete inventory. In
general, the Company purchases materials for contract-based business from customer orders and projections,
primarily in the case of long lead-time items, and has a general philosophy to only purchase materials to the
extent covered by a written commitment from its customers. However, there are times when inventory is
purchased beyond customer commitments where minimal lot sizes, component allocation or other component
procurement issues may exist. Evaluation of excess inventory includes such factors as anticipated usage,
inventory turnover, inventory levels, and product demand levels. Factors considered when evaluating inventory
obsolescence include the age of on-hand inventory and reduction in value due to damage, use as showroom
samples, design changes or cessation of product lines.

Self-insurance reserves — The Company is self-insured up to certain limits for auto and general liability,
workers’ compensation and certain employee health benefits including medical, short-term disability and
dental with the related liabilities included in the accompanying financial statements. The Company’s policy is
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to estimate reserves based upon periodic actuarial valuations, and known or estimated future claims. The
Company uses independent outside actuaries to assist in the valuation of medical reserves on an annual basis
and on a bi-annual basis for workers compensation. Actuarial studies support the development of claim growth
factors, including factors for incurred but not reported claims, which are then applied to the Company’s actual
claims history. The actuarial valuations are based on historical information along with certain assumptions
about future events. The Company adjusts its reserve levels to align with these periodic independent actuarial
studies. Changes in assumptions for such matters as increased medical costs and changes in actual experience
could cause these estimates to change and reserve levels to be adjusted accordingly. At June 30, 2003 and
2002 the Company’s accrued liabilities for self-insurance exposure were $4.3 million and $4.1 million,
respectively, excluding amounts funded in a voluntary employees’ beneficiary association (VEBA) trust.

New Accounting Standards

In December 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 148 (FAS 148),
Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation-Transition and Disclosure, which amends Financial Accounting
Standards Board Statement No. 123 (FAS 123), Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation. FAS 148
provides alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change to the fair value based method of accounting
for stock-based employee compensation and amends the disclosure requirements of FAS 123 to require
disclosures in both the annual and interim financial statements about the method of accounting for stock-
based employee compensation and the effect of the method used on reported results. The transition guidance
and disclosure provisions of FAS 148 were effective for the Company’s financial statements issued for the
third quarter of fiscal year 2003. As allowed by FAS 123, the Company follows the disclosure requirements of
FAS 123, but continues to account for its employee stock option plans in accordance with Accounting
Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, which results in no charge to
earnings when options are issued at fair market value. Therefore, adoption of this statement did not have a
material impact on the Company’s financial position or results of operations. Disclosures required by FAS 148
are provided under the Stock-Based Compensation heading of Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

In November 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued FASB Interpretation No. 45
(FIN 45), Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, including Indirect Guaran-
tees of Indebtedness of Others. FIN 45 requires that upon issuance of certain guarantees, a guarantor must
recognize a liability for the fair value of the obligation assumed under the guarantee. FIN 45 also requires
additional disclosures by a guarantor in its interim and annual financial statements regarding certain
guarantees and product warranties. The recognition provisions of FIN 45 were adopted for guarantees issued
or modified after December 31, 2002, and disclosure provisions were adopted as of December 31, 2002. The
Company has disclosed its guarantees and product warranties in Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements. The recognition provisions of FIN 45 did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial
position or results of operations.

In June 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 146 (FAS 146), Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities, which
supersedes Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 94-3 (Issue 94-3), Liability Recognition for Certain
Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred in a
Restructuring). FAS 146 requires that a liability for a cost associated with an exit or disposal activity be
recognized when the liability is incurred. Under Issue 94-3, a liability for an exit cost as defined in Issue 94-3
was recognized at the date of an entity’s commitment to an exit plan. The Company early adopted the
provisions of FAS 146 and applied the new standard to account for the restructuring actions initiated during
the second quarter of fiscal year 2003.

The Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) issued EITF Issue 01-9, Accounting for Consideration Given
by a Vendor to a Customer or a Reseller of the Vendor’s Products, which requires that consideration for
certain sales incentives and rebates paid by a vendor to a reseller of the vendor’s products be classified as a
reduction of revenues, unless the vendor receives an identifiable benefit in return for the consideration and can
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reasonably estimate the fair value of the benefit received. The new guidance did not have a material effect on
the Company’s financial position or results of operations.

In August 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 144, Accounting for
the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets (FAS 144), which is effective for the Company’s fiscal year
2003. FAS 144 establishes a single model to account for impairment of assets to be held or disposed,
incorporating guidelines for accounting and disclosure of discontinued operations. The Company applied
FAS 144 in accounting for the impairment of assets during fiscal year 2003.

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 141, Business Combina-
tions (FAS 141), and Statement No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets (FAS 142). FAS 141
requires that all business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001 be accounted for under the purchase
method of accounting. Under FAS 142, amortization of goodwill will cease and the goodwill carrying values
will be tested periodically for impairment. The Company adopted FAS 142 effective July 1, 2002 for goodwill
and intangible assets acquired prior to July 1, 2001. The net income impact of adopting FAS 142 regarding
goodwill and other intangibles on July 1, 2002 was less than $20,000 per quarter given the Company’s
immaterial amount of goodwill capitalized on its balance sheet. The Company performed an initial
impairment study during the first quarter of fiscal year 2003, and later performed an annual impairment study
in the fourth quarter, and concluded that the carrying value of goodwill and intangible assets does not exceed
fair value and that no impairment write-down is necessary.

Item 7a — Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Interest Rate Risk: As of June 30, 2003 and 2002, the Company had an investment portfolio of fixed
income securities, excluding those classified as cash and cash equivalents, of $31 million and $54 million
respectively. The Company classifies its short-term investments in accordance with Financial Accounting
Standards Board Statement No. 115, Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities.
Available-for-sale securities are stated at market value with unrealized gains and losses being recorded net of
tax related effect, if any, as a component of Share Owners’ Equity. These securities, like all fixed income
instruments, are subject to interest rate risk and will decline in value if market interest rates increase. A
hypothetical 100 basis point increase in market interest rates from levels at June 30, 2003 and 2002 would
cause the fair value of these short-term investments to decline by an immaterial amount.

Foreign Exchange Rate Risk: The Company operates internationally, and thus is subject to potentially
adverse movements in foreign currency rate changes. The Company’s risk management strategy includes the
use of derivative financial statements to hedge certain foreign currency exposures. Derivatives are used only to
manage underlying exposures of the Company and are not used in a speculative manner. Further information
on derivative financial instruments is provided in Note 11 — Derivative Instruments of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8. The Company estimates that a hypothetical 10% adverse
change in foreign currency exchange rates relative to its financial instruments would not affect the
consolidated operating results of the Company by a material amount.

23




Item 8 — Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Page No.
Report of Management. .. ... ... e 25
Report of Independent Auditors .......... i 26
Report of Previous Independent Public Accountants . .............. .. ... ... ... 27
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2003 and 2002 ........ ... ... ... .. 28
Consolidated Statements of Income for the Three Years Ended June 30,2003 ............... 29
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Three Years Ended June 30, 2003 ........... 30
Consolidated Statements of Share Owners’ Equity for the Three Years Ended June 30, 2003. .. 31
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements . ........ ... . i, 32-53

24




REPORT OF MANAGEMENT

To the Share Owners of Kimball International, Inc.

The management of Kimball International, Inc. is responsible for the preparation and integrity of the
accompanying financial statements and other related information in this report. The consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries, including the footnotes, were prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and include judgements and
estimates, which in the opinion of management are applied on an appropriately conservative basis.

The Company maintains a system of internal and disclosure controls intended to provide reasonable
assurance that assets are safeguarded from loss or material misuse, transactions are authorized and recorded
properly, and that the accounting records may be relied upon for the preparation of the financial statements.
This system is tested and evaluated regularly for adherence and effectiveness by the Company’s staff of
internal auditors, as well as the independent auditors in connection with their annual audit.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, which is comprised of directors who are not employees
of the Company, meets regularly with management, the internal auditors and the independent auditors to
review the Company’s financial policies and procedures, its internal control structure, the objectivity of its
financial reporting, and the independence of the Company’s independent auditors. The internal auditors and
the independent auditors have free and direct access to the Audit Committee, and they meet periodically,
without management present, to discuss appropriate matters.

/s/ DouGLas A. HABIG

Douglas A. Habig
Chairman of the Board,
Chief Executive Officer

/s/  JamEes C. THYEN

James C. Thyen
President

/s/ ROBERT F. SCHNEIDER

Robert F. Schneider
Executive Vice President,
Chief Financial Officer,

Treasurer
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

To the Board of Directors and Share Owners of Kimball International, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Kimball International, Inc. and
subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of June 30, 2003 and 2002, and the related consolidated statements of
income, share owners’ equity and cash flows for the years then ended. Our audits also included the 2003 and
2002 financial statement schedules listed in the Index at Item 15. These financial statements and financial
statement schedules are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements and financial statement schedules based on our audits. The consolidated
financial statements and financial statement schedules as of June 30, 2001, and for the year then ended were
audited by other auditors who have ceased operations. Those auditors expressed an unqualified opinion on
those financial statements and stated that such 2001 financial statement schedules, when considered in
relation to the 2001 basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presented fairly, in all material
respects, the information set forth therein, in their report dated August 1, 2001.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, such 2003 and 2002 consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Kimball International, Inc. and subsidiaries as of June 30, 2003 and 2002,
and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, the 2003 and 2002
financial statement schedules, when considered in relation to the basic 2003 and 2002 consolidated financial
statements taken as a whole, present fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein.

/s/ DEeLoITTE & ToucHE LLP

Deloitte & Touche LLP
Indianapolis, Indiana
July 31, 2003
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REPORT OF PREVIOUS INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

THE FOLLOWING REPORT IS A COPY OF A REPORT PREVIOUSLY ISSUED BY ARTHUR
ANDERSEN LLP AND HAS NOT BEEN REISSUED BY ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP. IN
ACCORDANCE WITH NEW SEC REGULATIONS, ITEM 14 REFERENCED BELOW IS NOW
ITEM 15.

To the Board of Directors and Share Owners of Kimball International, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Kimball International, Inc. (an
Indiana corporation) and subsidiaries as of June 30, 2001 and 2000, and the related consolidated statements of
income, cash flows and share owners’ equity for each of the three years in the period ended June 30, 2001.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Kimball International, Inc. and subsidiaries as of June 30, 2001 and 2000,
and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended June 30,
2001, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

QOur audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
taken as a whole. The schedule listed under item 14 is the responsibility of the Company’s management and is
presented for purposes of complying with the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and is not part of
the basic consolidated financial statements. This schedule has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic consolidated financial statements and, in our opinion, fairly states in all
material respects the financial data required to be set forth therein in relation to the basic consolidated
financial statements taken as a whole.

/s/ ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP
Arthur Andersen LLP
Chicago, llinois
August 1, 2001
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KIMBALL INTERNATIONAL, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Amounts in Thousands, Except for Share Data)

June 30, June 30,
2003 2002

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 18,662
Short-term investments 30,729 53,919
Receivables, less allowances of $6,276 and $5,5135, respectively 126,585 150,836
Inventories 87,299 100,632
42,523 40,108

Total current assets 338,427 364,157

Property and Equipment, net of accumulated depreciation
of $351,430 and $347,463, respectively 198,981 236,176

Capitalized Software, net of accumulated amortization
of $29,128 and $28,049, respectively 42376 38,968

Other Assets 35,860 34,811
Total Assets $615,644 $674,112

LIABILITIES AND SHARE OWNERS’ EQUITY
Current Liabilities:

Current maturities of long-termdebt......... ... ... ... .. . . . $ 1,340 $ 611
Accounts payable . .. ... 79,349 104,547
Dividends payable . ... ... . e 6,023 6,015
AcCrued EXPeNSES . . . ot e 50,342 62,176
Accrued TESITUCTUTIIE ..o .ottt ettt e e e 592 2,624

Total current liabilities ... ... ... . . 137,646 175,973

Other Liabilities:

Long-term debt, less current maturities ................couiiiinnr e, 833 2,291
Deferred income taxes and other .. ... ... ... . i 41,749 43,360

Total other liabilities . ....... .. .0 i 42,582 45,651

Share Owners’ Equity:
Common stock-par value $0.05 per share:
Class A — Shares authorized 49,826,000 in 2003 and 2002

Shares issued 14,368,000 in 2003 and 2002 ........... .. .. .. ... . ..., 718 718
Class B — Shares authorized 100,000,000 in 2003 and 2002
Shares issued 28,657,000 in 2003 and 2002 ........... ... ... ... 1,433 1,433
Additional paid-in capital ....... ... . e 7,107 7,752
Retained armings. . ... ...ttt e 505,925 524,418
Accumulated other comprehensive InCome . . .. ... 1,283 604
Less: Treasury stock, at cost:
Class A — 589,000 shares (545,000 in 2002) ........ ... v, (9,351) (8,824)
Class B — 4,360,000 shares (4,454,000in 2002} .. ... ... ... iriinn. (71,699)  (73,613)
Total Share Owners” Equity . ... ..o 435,416 452,488
Total Liabilities and Share Owners” Equity .......... . ..., $615,644  $674,112

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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KIMBALL INTERNATIONAL, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(Amounts in Thousands, Except for Per Share Data)

Year Ended June 30

2003 2002 2001
Net Sales .. .. i $1,154,692  $1,172,504  $1,261,171
Costof Sales ... ... i 904,879 903,666 968,918
Gross Profit. . ... oo 249,813 268,838 292,253
Selling, General and Administrative Expenses ................. 228,510 237,512 243,843
Restructuring and Other Expense . .......... ... . ... .. .... 21,389 897 27,695
Operating (Loss) Income . .......... ... . ... ... ... (86) 30,429 20,715
Other Income (Expense):
Interest €XPense . .. ...ttt (179) (329) (1,441)
Interest INCOME. . . ..ot e 1,981 2,460 3,026
Other, net ... .. 4,717 19,045 4,621
Other income, Net . ...t 6,519 21,176 6,206
Income Before Taxeson Income . ........................... 6,433 51,605 26,921
Provision for Income Taxes ..............cciviiiniiininn.n. 839 17,105 10,338
Net InCOmE .o e e e e $ 5594 $§ 34,500 $§ 16,583
Earnings Per Share of Common Stock
Basic:
Class A ... $ 013 § 089 § 0.41
Class B ... $ 0.15 % 091 § 0.43
Diluted:
Class A . oo e $ 013 §$ 08 §$ 0.41
Class B ... $ 015 $ 091 $ 0.43
Average Number of Shares Outstanding
Basic:
Class A ..o 13,786 13,979 14,141
Class B ..o i 24,278 24,059 24,952
Totals. . ... o 38,064 38,038 39,093
Diluted:
Class A ..o 13,786 13,979 14,141
Class B ... . 24,299 24,089 25,010
Totals. . ... e 38,085 38,068 39,151

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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KIMBALL INTERNATIONAL, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Amounts in Thousands)

Year Ended June 30
2003 2002 2601

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
INEt INCOME .« o\ ottt et e e e e e e $ 5594 $ 34,500 § 16,583

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization. .......................... 43,800 46,852 47,652
(Gain)/Loss on sales of assets, facilities and subsidiaries . . . . 217 (8,338) (632)
Restructuring and other ............. ... . ... ..o u... 15,340 (2,268) 27,040
Deferred income tax and other deferred charges............ (2,007) 5,059 (2,301)
Change in current assets and liabilities:
Receivables ...... .. .. 22,302 (4,994) 30,914
TOVENEOrIES . . ottt e 11,483 10,116 (623)
Other current assetsS .. ...ttt (3,157) 809 2,900
Accounts payable ...... .. ... . (24,900) 3,213 (827)
ACCTUEd EXPENSES « . vttt et (12,117) 1,313 (18,411)
Transfer of funds to trusteed retirement plan portfolio............. — (9,073) —
Net cash provided by operating activities................ 56,555 77,189 102,295
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Capital expenditures . . ... ...ttt i e (21,989)  (37,995)  (46,778)
Proceeds from sales of assets. . ... ... i e 5,645 1,976 3,130
Proceeds from sales of facilities/subsidiaries ... .................. 5,381 20,238 —
Purchase of capitalized software and other assets................. (12,498)  (17,952) (12,482)
Purchases of available-for-sale securities ........... ... ... ... ... {26,101)  (45,543)  (56,316)
Sales and maturities of available-for-sale securities ............... 49,174 60,326 68,433
Net cash used for investing activities ................... (388)  (18,950)  (44,013)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Net change in short-term borrowings . ...........ovvieiienenn.. - (26,254) (8,486)
Net change in long-termdebt . ....... ... ... .. ... ... ... ...... (98) (1,101) 856
Acquisition of treasury stock .. ... ... .. i — (26)  (20,447)
Dividends paid to share owners........... ... ... oo, (24,079)  (24,054)  (24,842)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options . ........................ — 269 654
Other, net. ..o e 477 299 117
Net cash used for financing activities . .................. (23,700)  (50,867)  (52,148)
Effect of Exchange Rate Change on Cash and Cash Equivalents .. ... 162 53 (120)
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents ....................... 32,629 7,425 6,014
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year .................. 18,662 11,237 5,223
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year ....................... $ 51,291 §$ 18,662 $ 11,237
Total Cash, Cash Equivalents and Short-Term Investments:
Cash and cash equivalents . ............................... $ 51,291  §$ 18,662 $ 11,237
Short-term investments . ............ ..t 30,729 53,919 68,746
Totals oo $ 82,020 § 72,581 § 79,983

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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KIMBALL INTERNATIONAL, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHARE OCWNERS’ EQUITY

(Amounts in Thousands, Except for Share Data)

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Accumulated
Additional Gther Total Share
Common Stock  “paig.ln  Retained Comprehensive Treasury  Owners’
Class A Class B Capital  Earnings Income Stock Equity
Amounts at June 30,2000 ................... $722 $1,429  $8,056  $522,041 $ 326 $(64,047) $468,527
Comprehensive income:
Netincome.......ooovviiiviininnein. 16,583 16,583
Net change in unrealized gains and losses on
SECUMIES . ..o 1,143 1,143
Foreign currency translation adjustment . ... (33) (33)
Comprehensive income .............. 17,693
Treasury stock activity (1,332,000 shares) .. 57 (19,942)  (19,885)
Net conversions of shares of Class A and
Class B common stock (51,000 shares) .. (2) 2 375 (375) —
Exercise of stock options (83,000 shares) . .. (356) 1,088 732
Cash dividends:
Class A (80.62 per share)............ (8,761) (8,761)
Class B ($0.64 per share) ............ _ (15,882) (15,882)
Amounts at June 30,2001 ................... $720 $1,431  $8,132  $513,981 $1,436 $(83,276) $442,424
Comprehensive income:
Netincome ......ooovviniiini i 34,500 34,500
Net change in unrealized gains and losses on
SECUTItIES . ..o (28) (28)
Foreign currency translation adjustment . . .. (833) (833)
Net change in derivative gains and losses . .. 29 29
Comprehensive income .............. 33,668
Treasury stock activity (3,000 shares)...... (58) (67) (125)
Net conversions of shares of Class A and
Class B common stock (32,000 shares) .. (2) 2 (231) 231 —
Exercise of stock options and performance
share issuance (46,000 shares) .......... on 675 584
Cash dividends:
Class A ($0.62 per share)............ (8,652) (8,652)
Class B (30.64 per share) ............ . (15,411) (15,411)
Amounts at June 30,2002 ................... $718 $1,433  $7,752  $524,418 $ 604 $(82,437) 9$452,488
Comprehensive income:
Netincome......oovvvveiiniiiineinnnns 5,594 5,594
Net change in unrealized gains and losses on
SECUTIHIES .« v v e (1M (77}
Foreign currency translation adjustment .. .. 1,116 1,116
Net change in derivative gains and losses . .. (360) (360)
Comprehensive income .............. 6,273
Treasury stock activity (24,000 shares) .. ... (119) 457 338
Net exchanges of shares of Class A and
Class B common stock (44,000 shares) .. (411) 411 —
Performance share issuance (26,000 shares) .. (113) 519 404
Cash dividends:
Class A ($0.62 per share)............ (8,548) (8,548)
Class B (80.64 per share) ............ o (15,539) (15,539)
Amounts at June 30,2003 ................... $718 $1,433  $7,007  $505,925 $1,283 $(81,050) $435416
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KIMBALL INTERNATIONAL, INC,
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation: The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of all domestic
and foreign subsidiaries. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in the
consolidation.

Revenue Recognition: Revenue from product sales is recognized when title and risk transfer to the
customer, which under the terms and conditions of the sale, may occur either at the time of shipment or when
the product is delivered to the customer. Service revenue is recognized as services are rendered. Based on
estimated product returns and price concessions, a reserve for returns and allowances is recorded at the time of
the sale, resulting in a reduction of revenue. An allowance for doubtful accounts is recorded based upon the
estimated collectibility of receivables, and results in an increase in selling expenses.

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts included in the consolidated financial statements and related footnote
disclosures. While efforts are made to assure estimates used are reasonably accurate based on management’s
knowledge of current events, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Short-Term Investments: Cash equivalents consist primarily of highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less at the time of acquisition. Cash equivalents
are stated at cost, which approximates market value. Short-term investments are cash investments, primarily
municipal bonds and U.S. Government securities with maturities exceeding three months at the time of
acquisition. Available-for-sale securities are stated at market value, with unrealized gains and losses excluded
from net income and recorded net of related tax effect in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income, as a
component of Share Owners’ Equity.

Inventories: Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market value. Cost includes material, labor
and applicable manufacturing overhead and is determined using the last-in, first-out (LIFO) method for
approximately 51% and 37% of consolidated inventories in 2003 and 2002, respectively. Cost of the remaining
inventories is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. FIFO inventory recorded on the
Company’s balance sheet is adjusted for excess and obsolete inventory.

Property, Equipment and Depreciation: Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation. Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful life of the assets using the straight-line
method for financial reporting purposes. Maintenance, repairs and minor renewals and betterments are
expensed; major improvements are capitalized.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets: The Company performs reviews for impairment of long-lived assets,
such as property and equipment, goodwill and purchased intangible assets, whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable. Goodwill and intangible
assets are tested for potential impairment at least annually. An impairment loss is recognized when estimated
future cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset and its eventual disposition are less than its
carrying amount. When an impairment is identified, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
estimated fair value.

Goodwill and Purchased Intangible Assets: In conjunction with the implementation of Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 142 (FAS 142), goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives are no longer amortized, but are tested for potential impairment on an annual basis, or more often if
events or circumstances change that could cause goodwill or indefinite life intangible assets to become
impaired. Neither the initial impairment test performed upon the adoption of FAS 142, nor the annual
impairment study resulted in impairment. Other purchased intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives, which range from 3 to 8 years. The Company has no intangible assets
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KIMBALL INTERNATIONAL, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Centinued)

with indefinite useful lives. Purchased intangible assets consist primarily of licenses and rights to produce and
sell certain products. At June 30, 2003 and 2002, the Company had, in thousands, $2,166 of goodwill. In
addition, purchased intangible assets net of accumulated amortization totaled, in thousands, $678 and $1,419
at June 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively. During fiscal year 2003, and 2002, the Company recorded , in
thousands, $741 and $733 of amortization expense on intangible assets, respectively. The Company estimates
intangible amortization expense to be, in thousands, $361, $136, $136, $44 and $0 for each of the 5 years
ending June 30, 2008, respectively.

Capitalized Software: Internal-use software is stated at cost less accumulated amortization and is
amortized using the straight-line method over its estimated useful life ranging from 2 to 7 years. Software
assets are reviewed for impairment when events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be
recoverable over the remaining lives of the assets. During the software application development stage,
capitalized costs include external consulting costs, cost of software licenses, and internal payroll and payroll-
related costs for employees who are directly associated with a software project. Upgrades and enhancements
are capitalized if they result in added functionality which enable the software to perform tasks it was
previously incapable of performing. Software maintenance, training, data conversion and business process
reengineering costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Research and Development: The costs of research and development are expensed as incurred. These
costs were approximately, in millions, $17.6 in 2003, $15.1 in 2002, and $14.5 in 2001.

Insurance and Self-insurance: The Company is self-insured up to certain limits for auto and general
liability, workers’ compensation and certain employee health benefits including medical, short-term disability
and dental with the related liabilities included in the accompanying financial statements. The Company’s
policy is to estimate reserves based upon periodic actuarial valuations, and known or estimated future claims.
The Company uses independent outside actuaries to assist in the valuation of medical reserves on an annual
basis and on a bi-annual basis for workers’ compensation. Actuarial studies support the development of claim
growth factors, including factors for incurred but not reported claims, which are then applied to the
Company’s actual claims history. The actuarial valuations are based on historical information along with
certain assumptions about future events. The Company adjusts its reserve levels to align with these periodic
independent actuarial studies.

The Company carries external medical and disability insurance coverage for approximately 43% of its
workforce not covered by self-insured plans. The Company also carries stop-loss insurance coverage to
mitigate severe losses under external and self-insured plans. Insurance benefits are not provided to retired
employees.

Income Taxes: Unremitted earnings of foreign subsidiaries have been included in the consolidated
financial statements without giving effect to the United States taxes that may be payable on distribution to the
United States because it is not anticipated such earnings will be remitted to the United States. If remitted, the
additional United States taxes paid would not be material.

Off-Balance Sheet Risk and Concentration of Credit Risk: The Company engages in financing arrange-
ments with customers on a limited basis and has business and credit risks concentrated in the transportation,
computer, telecommunications, consumer electronics and furniture industries. One customer, TRW Automo-
tive, Inc., represented 18% and 26% of consolidated accounts receivable at June 30, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. The Company currently does not foresee a credit risk associated with these receivables. The
Company’s off-balance sheet arrangements are limited to guarantees which are contingent on the future
performance of another entity as described in Note 5. The Company has no investments in or relationships
with variable interest entities.

Foreign Currency Translation: The Company uses the U.S. dollar predominately as its functional
currency. Foreign currency assets and liabilities are remeasured into U.S. dollars at end-of-period exchange
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KIMBALL INTERNATIONAL, INC,
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

rates, except for nonmonetary assets and liabilities {primarily property and equipment) and equity, which are
remeasured at historical exchange rates. Revenue and expenses are remeasured at the weighted average
exchange rate during the year, except for expenses related to nonmonetary assets and liabilities, which are
remeasured at historical exchange rates. Gains and losses from foreign currency remeasurement are included
in net income. Certain foreign subsidiaries designate the local currency as their functional currency and
include translation gains and losses in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income, as a component of Share
Owners’ Equity.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities: Derivative financial instruments are recognized on the
balance sheet as either assets or liabilities and are measured at fair value. Changes in the fair value of
derivatives are recorded each period in earnings or Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income, depending on
whether a derivative is designated and effective as part of a hedge transaction, and if it is, the type of hedge
transaction. Gains and losses on derivative instruments reported in Accumulated Other Comprehensive
Income are subsequently included in earnings in the periods in which earnings are affected by the hedged
item. The Company's use of derivatives is generally limited to forward purchases of foreign currency to
manage exposure to the variability of cash flows, primarily related to the foreign exchange rate risks inherent
in forecasted transactions denominated in foreign currency. Derivative financial instruments did not have a
material effect on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.

Reclassifications: Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform with the current year
presentation.

Stock-Based Compensation: The Company accounts for stock-based employee compensation plans
under the recognition and measurement principles of APB QOpinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees, and related Interpretations. Accordingly, because all stock options granted had an exercise price
equal to the market value of the underlying common stock on the date of the grant, no expense related to
employee stock options is recognized in income. The Company does recognize expense associated with
performance shares, which compensates employees with common stock when certain performance objectives
are attained. The Company’s stock-based employee compensation plans are described in Note 8. The
Company has adopted the disclosure provisions of FASB Statement 148, Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation — Transition and Disclosure. The following table illustrates the effect on net income and
earnings per share if the Company had applied the fair value recognition provisions of FASB Statement
No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, to stock-based employee compensation.

Year Ended June 30

(Amounts in Thousands, Except for Per Share Data) 2003 2002 2001
Net Income, asreported ....... oottt $5,594  $34,500 $16,583
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense included in

reported net income, net of related tax effects ............ ... 159 246 218
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense

determined under fair value based method for all awards,

net of related tax effects. . ... ... . .. . . . 2,003 3,046 3,292
Pro forma net inCOME . . .. ..ot ottt e e $3,750  $31,700 $13,509
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Year Ended June 30

(Amounts in Thousands, Except for Per Share Data) 2603 2002 2601
Earnings per share:
As reported:
Basic:
ClasS A $013 § 089 § 041
Class B ..o $015 $ 091 $ 043
Diluted:
Class A ... o $013 § 08 $§ 041
Class B ... $015 § 091 $ 043
Pro Forma:
Basic:
Class A .. $009 $ 08 §$ 033
Class B. .. ... i $011 $ 084 $ 035
Diluted:
Class Ao e e $009 $ 082 §$ 033
Class B. ... i $011 §$ 084 $ 035

The fair value of the options at the date of grant was estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing
model with the following weighted average assumptions: historical volatility of 43.8% in 2003, 40.6% in 2002
and 38.2% in 2001; risk-free interest rates of 4.0% in 2003, 4.8% in 2002 and 6.1% in 2001; historical average
dividend growth of 5.6% in 2003, 5.3% in 2002, and 4.7% in 2001; and an estimated stock option life of
7.5 years for 2003, 6.0 years for 2002 and 4.0 years for 2001. The volatility and dividend growth are based on
historical trends and should not be construed as a guarantee of actual future trends. Using these assumptions,
the weighted average fair value at date of grant for options granted during the years ended June 30, 2003, 2002
and 2001 was $4.24, $4.30 and $4.38 per option, respectively.

New Accounting Standards: In December 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued
Statement No. 148 (FAS 148), Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation-Transition and Disclosure, which
amends Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 123 (FAS 123), Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation. FAS 148 provides alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change to the fair value
based method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation and amends the disclosure requirements
of FAS 123 to require disclosures in both the annual and interim financial statements about the method of
accounting for stock-based employee compensation and the effect of the method used on reported results. The
transition guidance and disclosure provisions of FAS 148 were effective for the Company’s financial
statements issued for the third quarter of fiscal year 2003. As allowed by FAS 123, the Company follows the
disclosure requirements of FAS 123, but continues to account for its employee stock option plans in
accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,
which results in no charge to earnings when options are issued at fair market value. Therefore, adoption of this
statement did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.
Disclosures required by FAS 148 are provided under the Stock-Based Compensation heading of Note 1.

In November 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued FASB Interpretation No. 435
(FIN 45), Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, including Indirect Guaran-
tees of Indebtedness of Cthers. FIN 45 requires that upon issuance of certain guarantees, a guarantor must
recognize a liability for the fair value of the obligation assumed under the guarantee. FIN 45 also requires
additional disclosures by a guarantor in its interim and annual financial statements regarding certain
guarantees and product warranties. The recognition provisions of FIN 45 were adopted for guarantees issued
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or modified after December 31, 2002, and disclosure provisions were adopted as of December 31, 2002. The
Company has disclosed its guarantees and product warranties in Note 5. The recognition provisions of FIN 45
did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.

In June 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 146 (FAS 146), Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities, which
supersedes Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 94-3 (Issue 94-3), Liability Recognition for Certain
Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred in a
Restructuring). FAS 146 requires that a liability for a cost associated with an exit or disposal activity be
recognized when the liability is incurred. Under Issue 94-3, a liability for an exit cost as defined in Issue 94-3
was recognized at the date of an entity’s commitment to an exit plan. The Company early adopted the
provisions of FAS 146 and applied the new standard to account for the restructuring actions initiated during
the second quarter of fiscal year 2003,

The Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) issued EITF Issue 01-9, Accounting for Consideration Given
by a Vendor to a Customer or a Reseller of the Vendor’s Products, which requires that consideration for
certain sales incentives and rebates paid by a vendor to a reseller of the vendor’s products be classified as a
reduction of revenues, unless the vendor receives an identifiable benefit in return for the consideration and can
reasonably estimate the fair value of the benefit received. The new guidance did not have a material effect on
the Company’s financial position or results of operations.

In August 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 144, Accounting for
the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets (FAS 144), which is effective for the Company’s fiscal year
2003. FAS 144 establishes a single model to account for impairment of assets to be held or disposed,
incorporating guidelines for accounting and disclosure of discontinued operations. The Company applied
FAS 144 in accounting for the impairment of assets during fiscal year 2003.

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 141, Business Combina-
tions (FAS 141), and Statement No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets (FAS 142). FAS 141
requires that all business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001 be accounted for under the purchase
method of accounting. Under FAS 142, amortization of goodwill will cease and the goodwill carrying values
will be tested periodically for impairment. The Company adopted FAS 142 effective July 1, 2002 for goodwill
and intangible assets acquired prior to July 1, 2001. The net income impact of adopting FAS 142 regarding
goodwill and other intangibles on July 1, 2002 was less than $20,000 per quarter given the Company’s
immaterial amount of goodwill capitalized on its balance sheet. The Company performed an initial
impairment study during the first quarter of fiscal year 2003, and later performed an annual impairment study
in the fourth quarter, and concluded that the carrying value of goodwill and intangible assets does not exceed
fair value and that no impairment write-down is necessary.

Note 2 Acquisitions and Dispositions
Acguisitions of Subsidiaries:

In the second quarter of fiscal year 2002, the Company announced it had purchased a manufacturing
facility located in Auburn, Indiana. The Company assumed ownership of the facility, most of the equipment
and retained a large portion of the workforce. With the acquisition, the Company began to produce an
electronics module for an automotive passenger safety system and a line of small engine ignition products. The
acquisition was financed with available cash on hand. The new facility is not a significant subsidiary, and
accordingly, pro forma results of operations have not been provided.

In the first quarter of fiscal year 2001, the Company acquired the manufacturing assets of Alcatel located
in Poznan, Poland. The Company leases the facility and initially manufactured telecommunications equip-
ment under a supply agreement with Alcatel. The acquisition was accounted for as a purchase and was
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financed with available cash on hand. The new facility is not a significant subsidiary, and accordingly, pro
forma results of operations have not been provided.

Disposition of Subsidiaries:

In conjunction with the restructuring plan announced in the second quarter of fiscal year 2003, the
Company completed the sale of a microelectronics manufacturing facility located in Valencia, California in
February 2003. The facility was not a significant subsidiary, and accordingly, pro forma results of operations
have not been provided.

In conjunction with the restructuring plan announced in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2001, the
Company completed the sale of an electronics manufacturing facility located in France in November 2002,
The facility was not a significant subsidiary, and accordingly, pro forma results of operations have not been
provided.

The Company sold its Boesendorfer piano subsidiary, located in Vienna, Austria, to BAWAG-Bank of
Austria during the third quarter of fiscal year 2002. Included in the fiscal year 2002 Consolidated Statement of
Income is an $8.2 million after-tax gain on the sale of the subsidiary, which increased earnings per diluted
share by $0.22. The pre-tax gain recognized in Other-net was $15.4 million. Indirect expenses relating to the
sale recognized in Selling, General and Administrative Expense amounted to $5.3 million. Income taxes
amounted to $1.9 million. The facility was not a significant subsidiary, and accordingly, pro forma results of
operations have not been provided.

Note 3 Inventories

Inventories are valued using the lower of last-in, first-out (LIFQO) cost or market value for approximately
51% and 37% of consolidated inventories in 2003 and 2002, respectively, including approximately 91% and
85% of the Furniture and Cabinets segment inventories in 2003 and 2002, respectively. The Electronic
Contract Assemblies segment inventories and the remaining inventories in the Furniture and Cabinets
segment are valued using the lower of first-in, first-out (FIFO) cost or market value.

Had the FIFO method been used for all inventories, net income would have been $0.9 million higher in
2003, $1.5 million lower in 2002, and $0.3 million lower in 2001. Additionally, inventories would have been, in
millions, $21.0 and $19.3 higher at June 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively, if the FIFO method had been used.
Certain inventory quantity reductions caused liquidations of LIFO inventory values, which increased net
income by $0.1 million in 2003, $1.4 million in 2002, and $0.7 million in 2001.

Inventory components at June 30 are as follows:

(Amounts in Thousands) 2603 2082
Finished products . ........ .. oo $29.639 $ 26,211
W OrK I PrOCESS .« o v ot e 14,709 12,137
Raw matenials. . .. ..ot e 42,951 62,284
Total INVENTOTY . . ..ttt e $87,299  $100,632
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Note 4 Property and Equipmemnt

Major classes of property and equipment at June 30 consist of the following:
2003 2002
8,696 $§ 10,400
Buildings and improvements 191,447 196,591
Machinery and equipment 342,269 367,691
Construction-in-progress 7,999 8,957
$ 550,411 $ 583,639
Less: Accumulated depreciation (351,430)  (347,463)

(Amounts in Thousands)

Property and equipment, net $ 198,981 § 236,176

The useful lives used in computing depreciation are based on the Company’s estimate of the service life
of the classes of property, as follows:

Years

Buildings and improvements 51050
Machinery and equipment 2 to 20
Leasehold improvements Life of Lease

Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment, including asset write-downs associated with
the Company’s restructuring plans, totaled, in millions, $46.7 for 2003, $39.3 for 2002, and $46.9 for 2001.

Note 5 Commitments and Contingent Liabilities
Leases:

Operating leases for certain office, showroom, warchouse and manufacturing facilities, land and
equipment, which expire from fiscal year 2004 to 2030, contain provisions under which minimum annual lease
payments are, in millions, $6.4, $5.7, $3.9, $3.1, and $2.3 for the five years ended June 30, 2008, respectively,
and aggregate $2.5 million from fiscal year 2009 to the expiration of the leases in fiscal year 2030. The
Company is obligated under certain real estate leases to maintain the properties and pay real estate taxes.
Total rental expenses amounted to, in millions, $5.6, $7.1, and $5.6 in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Guarantees:

In November 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued FASB Interpretation No. 45
(FIN 45), Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, including Indirect Guaran-
tees of Indebtedness of Others. The Interpretation requires interim and annual disclosure of guarantees in
which the Company guarantees the future performance of another entity, a reconciliation of product warranty
liability, and a description of accounting policies for guarantees and warranties. In accordance with the
transition guidance of this Interpretation, the disclosure provisions of FIN 45 were adopted in the second
quarter of fiscal 2003, and the recognition provisions were adopted in the third quarter of fiscal 2003 for
guarantees that were entered into after December 31, 2002.

At the inception of a guarantee, the Company recognizes a liability for obligations the Company may
incur if specified triggering events or conditions occur. The liability is recorded at fair value which is estimated
based on various factors including risk that the Company may have to perform under a guarantee, and ability
to recover against payments made on a guarantee.
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As of June 30, 2003, the Company has guarantees issued which are contingent on the future performance
of another entity. The guarantees include customer lease financing with recourse, whereby the Company may
become liable to a third party leasing company if the customer defaults on their lease, and guarantees of third
party dealer facility leases, whereby the Company may become liable if the dealer defaults on a lease. The
maximum potential liability and carrying amount recorded for these guarantees is immaterial to the
Company’s financial position and results of operations.

Product Warranties:

The Company estimates product warranty liability at the time of sale based on historical repair cost
trends in conjunction with the length of the warranty offered. Management may refine the warranty liability in
cases where specific warranty issues become known.

Changes in the product warranty accrual during fiscal year 2003 were as follows:

Product

W.arr'apty
(Amounts in thousands) Liability
Balance as of July 1, 2002 . . . ... . o e $ 6,156
Accrual for warranties issued. .. ... .. 1,823
Accruals related to pre-existing warranties (including changes in estimates) ......... (472)
Settlements made (in cash orinkind) ....... ... ... ... .. . .. i (2,496)
Balance as of June 30, 2003 ... . . $ 5,011

Note ¢ Long-Term Debt and Credit Facility

Long-term debt is principally obligations under long-term capitalized leases. Aggregate maturities of
long-term debt for the next five years are, in thousands, $1,340, $448, $38, $8, and $9, respectively, and
aggregate $330 thereafter. Interest rates range from 0.0% to 9.25%. Interest paid was immaterial in each of the
three years ending June 30, 2003. Based upon borrowing rates currently available to the Company, the fair
value of the Company’s debt approximates the carrying value.

The Company maintains a five year revolving credit facility which expires in May 2004 and provides for
up to $100 million in borrowings. The Company uses this facility for acquisitions and general corporate
purposes. A commitment fee is payable on the unused portion of the credit facility. The interest rate
applicable to borrowings under the agreement is based on the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus
a margin. The Company is in compliance with debt covenants requiring it to maintain certain debt-to-total
capitalization, interest coverage ratio, minimum net worth, and other terms and conditions. At June 30, 2003
and 2002, the Company had no short-term borrowings outstanding under this facility. However, the Company
issued $4.8 million in letters of credit against the credit facility, which reduces total availability to borrow to
$95.2 million as of June 30, 2003. The Company intends to replace the current credit facility when it expires in
May 2004.

Note 7 Retirement Plans

The Company has a trusteed defined contribution retirement plan in effect for substantially all domestic
employees meeting the eligibility requirements. The plan includes a 401(k) feature, thereby permitting
participants to make additional voluntary contributions on a pre-tax basis. Payments by the Company to the
trusteed plan have a five year vesting schedule and are held for the sole benefit of participants.

The Company maintains a supplemental employee retirement plan (SERP) for executive employees
which enable them to defer cash compensation on a pre-tax basis in excess of IRS limitations. The SERP is
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structured as a rabbi trust and therefore assets in the SERP portfolio are subject to creditor claims in the event
of bankruptcy.

Company contributions are based on a percent of net income as defined in the plans; the percent of
contribution is determined by the Board of Directors up to specific maximum limits. Total contributions to the
retirement plans for 2003, 2002 and 2001 were approximately, in millions, $2.5, $6.1, and $5.0, respectively.

Employees of certain foreign subsidiaries are covered by local pension or retirement plans. Annual
expense and accumulated benefits of these foreign plans are not material to the consolidated financial
statements.

Note 8 Stock Options

On June 11, 1996, the Board of Directors adopted the 1996 Stock Incentive Program, which was
approved by the Company’s Share Owners on October 22, 1996. Under this plan, 4,200,000 shares of Class B
Common Stock were reserved, in addition to approximately 2.8 million remaining shares carried forward from
a pre-existing plan, for incentive stock options, nonqualified stock options, stock appreciation rights, and
performance share awards available for grant to officers and other key employees of the Company, and to
members of the Board of Directors who are not employees. The 1996 Stock Incentive Program is a ten year
plan. The number of employees participating in the program was 250 in fiscal year 2003 and 2002, and 270 in
fiscal year 2001.

On August 13, 1996, the Board of Directors approved 250,000 shares reserved for issuance under the
Directors’ Stock Compensation and Option Plan available to all members of the Board of Directors, which was
approved by the Company’s Share Owners on October 22, 1996. Under terms of the plan, Directors electing to
receive all, or a portion, of their fees in the form of Company stock will also be granted a number of stock
options equal to 50% of the number of shares received for compensation of fees. Option prices and vesting are
similar to those of the 1996 Stock Incentive Program. The plan is in effect through October 2006.

Stock options are priced at the fair market value of the stock at the date of grant. Options granted under
the plans generally are exercisable from six months to two years after the date of grant and expire five to ten
years after the date of grant. Stock options are forfeited when employment terminates, except in case of
retirement, death or permanent disability. The Company has elected to continue to follow the provisions of
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees and its related
interpretations; accordingly, no compensation cost has been reflected in the financial statements for its stock
options. See Note 1 for the pro forma net income effect if compensation cost of stock options had been
recognized in the financial statements.
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Stock option transactions are as follows:
Number Weighted Average

of Shares Exercise Price
Options outstanding June 30,2000 ............................ 1,936,556 $18.07
Granted ... . 816,401 16.10
Exercised ... ..o (253,633) 13.16
Forfeited . ... . ... (219,074) 18.87
EXpired . ..o e (112,134) 13.27
Options outstanding June 30, 2001 ......... ... ... .. ... ... 2,168,116 18.07
Granted . ... .. e 1,152,045 15.22
Exercised .. ... (85,389) 13.77
Forfeited . ... (212,784) 17.20
Expired .. ..o (78,272) 13.90
Options outstanding June 30,2002 ............................ 2,943,716 17.26
Granted ... .. e 841,319 15.06
Exercised ... ... .. — —_
Forfeited . ... ... i e (466,093) 16.96
Expired ... ..o (305,306) 21.81
Options outstanding June 30,2003 ............................ 3,013,636 $16.23
Shares available for future issuance ........................... 4,148,178
Following is a status of options outstanding at June 30, 2003:
Qutstanding Options Exercisable Options
Weighted
Average Weighted Weighted
Remaining Average Average
Contractual Exercise Exercise
Exercise Price Range Number Life Price Number Price
$11.00-$16.00 . ................... 1,797,932 9 years $15.14 26,991 $14.74
$16.00-320.00 . ................... 1,167,704 4 years 17.66 1,149,261 17.63
$20.00-$24.00 . ........ .. 48,000 4 years 21.83 48,000 21.83
Total ......... ... i 3,013,636 7 years $16.23 1,224,252 $17.73

Note 9 Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Income
tax benefits associated with net operating losses expire from fiscal year 2007 to 2023. A valuation reserve was
provided as of June 30, 2003 for deferred tax assets relating to foreign net operating losses.
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The components of the deferred tax assets and liabilities as of June 30, 2003 and 2002, are as follows:

(Amounts in Thousands) 2003 2062
Deferred Tax Assets:
Receivables . . ... o $ 3,650 $ 2,630
InVenmtOry . . e e 5,350 6,500
Employee benefits ... 7,375 7,387
Other current liabilities .. .......... .. . ... 4,336 7,063
Restructuring ... ..ottt 230 470
Goodwill ... . 1,076 2,672
Charitable contribution carryforward . ............. ... ... ... ... ..... 918 —
Miscellaneous . ... ..ot 1,723 487
Net operating loss carryforward . ......... .. ... oo L 3,342 1,115
Valuation Allowance ......... ... . i (45) —
Total ASSEL. . . o v ettt e $27,955 $28,324
Deferred Tax Liabilities:
Property & equipment .. ... ...ttt $19,105  $20,109
Capitalized software. . ... ... ... i i 4,224 5,068
MiSCElANEOUS . . . oottt e 805 1,074
Total liability ... i $24,134  $26,251

The components of income before taxes on income are as follows:
Year Ended June 30

(Amounts in Thousands) 2693 2002 2001

United StateS . . . oottt ettt ettt e $2,457 $50,784  $22,536

FOreign . . ottt 3,976 821 4,385
Total income before income taxes ..............c.covvn... $6,433 351,605 $26,921

The provision for income taxes is composed of the following items:
Year Ended June 30

(Amounts in Thousands) 2003 2002 2001
Currently Payable:
Federal ... .. . o i $§ 209 $9739 § 8559
Foreign . ... 1,507 1,303 2,562
3 7 1 (O 871 1,948 2,476
Total current . ... ... . . e 2,587 12,990 13,597
Deferred Taxes .. ..ot e (1,748) 4,115 (3,259)
Total provision for income taxes ........................ $ 839 $17,105 $10,338
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A reconciliation of the statutory U.S. income tax rate to the Company’s effective income tax rate follows:
Year Ended June 30

2003 2002 2001
(Amounts in Thousands) Amount % Amount % Amount %
Tax computed at statutory rate ............... $2,252 350% $18,062 350% $ 9422 35.0%
State income taxes, net of federal income tax
benefit ....... . ... . ... 301 4.7 1,895 37 889 3.3
Foreign tax effect . .......................... (166)  (2.6) (100) (0.2) 1,027 3.8
Capital loss benefit.......................... — — — — (199) (0.7)
Tax-exempt interest income .................. (488)  (7.6) (787) (1.5) (1,027) (3.8)
Non-deductible goodwill ..................... — — — — 941 3.5
Sale of subsidiary........................... (124) (1.9 (1,868) (3.6) — —
Donation of appreciated assets ................ (686) (10.7) — — — —
Other —mnet..................ccciiiiiiii.. (250) (3.9) (97) (0.3) (715) (2.7
Total provision for income taxes .......... $ 839 13.0% $17,105 33.1% $10,338 38.4%

Cash payments for income taxes, net of refunds, were in thousands, $8,251, $4,665 and $17,413 in 2003,
2002 and 2001, respectively.

Note 10 Commeon Stock

On a fiscal year basis, shares of Class B Common Stock are entitled to an additional $0.02 per share
dividend more than the dividends paid on Class A Common Stock, provided that dividends are paid on the
Company’s Class A Common Stock. The owners of both Class A and Class B Common Stock are entitled to
share pro-rata, irrespective of class, in the distribution of the Company’s available assets upon dissolution.

Owners of Class B Common Stock are entitled to elect, as a class, one member of the Company’s Board
of Directors. In addition, owners of Class B Common Stock are entitled to full voting powers, as a class, with
respect to any consolidation, merger, sale, lease, exchange, mortgage, pledge, or other disposition of all or
substantially all of the Company’s fixed assets, or dissolution of the Company. Gtherwise, except as provided
by statute with respect to certain amendments to the Articles of Incorporation, the owners of Class B
Commeon Stock have no voting rights, and the entire voting power is vested in the Class A Common Stock,
which has one vote per share. The Habig families own directly or share voting power in excess of 50% of the
Class A Common Stock of Kimball International, Inc. The owner of a share of Class A Common Stock may,
at their option, convert such share into one share of Class B Common Stock at any time.

If any dividends are not paid on shares of the Company’s Class B Common Stock for a period of thirty-six
consecutive months, or if at any time the number of shares of Class A Common Stock issued and outstanding
is less than 15% of the total number of issued and outstanding shares of both Class A and Class B Common
Stock, then all shares of Class B Common Stock shall automatically have the same rights and privileges as the
Class A Common Stock, with full and equal voting rights and with equal rights to receive dividends as and if
declared by the Board of Directors.

Note 11 Derivative Instruments

The Company operates internationally and is therefore exposed to foreign currency exchange rate
fluctuations in the normal course of its business. As part of its risk management strategy, the Company uses
derivative instruments to hedge certain foreign currency exposures. Before acquiring a derivative instrument to
hedge a specific risk, potential natural hedges are evaluated. Derivative instruments are only utilized to
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manage underlying exposures that arise from the Company’s business operations and are not used for
speculative purposes. Factors considered in the decision to hedge an underlying market exposure include the
materiality of the risk, the volatility of the market, the duration of the hedge, the degree to which the
underlying exposure is committed to, and the availability, effectiveness and cost of derivative instruments.

The Company uses forward contracts designated as cash flow hedges to protect against foreign currency
exchange rate risks inherent in forecasted transactions denominated in a foreign currency. As of June 30, 2003
and 2002, the maximum length of time the Company had hedged its exposure to the variability in future cash
flows was 11 and 4 months, respectively. For derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as cash
flow hedges, the effective portions of the gain or loss on the derivative instrument are initially recorded net of
related tax effect in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income, a component of Share Owners’ Equity, and
are subsequently reclassified into earnings in the period during which the hedged transaction is recognized in
earnings. The ineffective portion of the gain or loss is reported in other income or expense immediately.

The fair value of derivative financial instruments recorded on the balance sheet as of June 30, 2003 and
2002 was, in thousands, $89 and $29, recorded in other current assets, and $574 and $0, recorded in other
current liabilities, respectively. Derivative gains, on a pre-tax basis, were, in thousands, $30, $33 and $0, in
fiscal year 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively. The Company estimates that $0.5 million of pre-tax derivative
losses deferred in accumulated other comprehensive income will be reclassified into earnings, along with the
earnings effects of related forecasted transactions, within the next fiscal year ending June 30, 2004.

Note 12 Short-Term Investments

The Company’s short-term investment portfolio consists of available-for-sale securities, primarily
government and municipal obligations. These securities are reported at fair value, which is estimated based
upon the quoted market values of those, or similar instruments. Carrying costs reflect the original purchase
price, with discounts and premiums amortized over the life of the security.

Fair values and carrying costs of available-for-sale securities were, in thousands, $30,729 and $29,880 at
June 30, 2003, compared to $53,919, and $52,952 at June 30, 2002, respectively. Unrealized holding gains and
losses at June 30, 2003 were, in thousands, $851 and ($2), compared to $967 and $0 at June 30, 2002,
respectively. All available-for-sale securities mature within a five year period.

Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale securities were, in thousands, $23,455 and $19,870 for the years
ended June 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Gross realized gains and losses on the sale of available-for-sale
securities at June 30, 2003 were, in thousands, $414 and ($6) respectively, compared to gross realized gains
and losses of, in thousands, $363 and ($8) respectively, at June 30, 2002. The cost was determined on each
individual security in computing the realized gains and losses.

The Company maintains a self-directed supplemental employee retirement plan (SERP) for executive
employees which holds investments of $8.7 million and $8.8 million at June 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
The SERP is structured as a rabbi trust and therefore assets in the SERP portfolio are subject to creditor
claims in the event of bankruptcy. The Company recognizes SERP assets on the balance sheet at current fair
value. A SERP liability of the same amount is recorded on the balance sheet representing the Company’s
obligation to distribute SERP funds to participants. The SERP investment assets are classified as trading, and
accordingly, realized and unrealized gains and losses are recognized in income. Adjustments made to revalue
the SERP liability are also recognized in income, and exactly offset valuation adjustments on SERP
investment assets. The change in net unrealized holding gains and losses at June 30, 2003 and 2002 was, in
thousands, ($229) and ($398), respectively.
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Note 13  Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses at June 30 consist of:

June 30
(Amounts in Thousands) 2003 2002
T aXeS . o $ 7,350 % 7,309
COmMPENSATION . . . o\ttt et e et e 20,270 22,494
Retirement plan ... ... e 2,370 6,117
Other EXPENSES . . ottt e 20,352 26,256
Total accrued EXpenses . ... ...t i $50,342  $62,176

Note 14 Segment and Geographic Area Information

Management organizes the Company into segments based upon differences in products and services
offered in each segment. The segments and their principal products and services are as follows:

The Furniture and Cabinets segment manufactures furniture for the office, residential, and hospitality and
healthcare industries, all sold under the Company’s family of brand names. Other products produced by the
Furniture and Cabinets segment on a contract basis include television cabinets and stands, residential
furniture, retail infrastructure products and forest products. Forest products are primarily sold to outside
customers and are used in certain end products of the Company. Intersegment sales are insignificant.

The Electronic Contract Assemblies segment provides engineering and manufacturing services to a
variety of industries on a global scale. Intersegment sales are insignificant. Included in the Electronic Contract
Assemblies segment are sales to one customer, TRW Automotive, Inc., totaling in millions, $196.7, $185.7
and $192.2 in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, representing 17%, 16% and 15% of consolidated net sales.

The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in the “Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies” with additional explanation of segment allocations as follows. Corporate operating costs
are allocated to the segments based on the extent to which each segment uses a centralized function, where
practicable. However, certain common costs have been allocated among segments less precisely than would be
required for stand alone financial information prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. Unallocated corporate assets include cash and cash equivalents,
short-term investments and other assets not allocated to segments.

The Company evaluates segment performance based upon several financial measures, although the two
most common include economic profit, which incorporates a segment’s cost of capital when evaluating
financial performance, and net income. Net income is reported for each segment as it is the measure most
consistent with the measurement principles used in the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
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2003
Furniture Electronic Unallocated
and Contract Corporate and
(Amounts in Thousands) Cabinets Assemblies Eliminations Consolidated
NetSales............co i, $697,651  $456,719 $ 322 $1,154,692
Depreciation and Amortization............ 32,516 11,284 — 43,800
Interest Income ........................ — — 1,981 1,981
Interest Expense . ........... .. .. ... ... 116 15 48 179
Taxeson Income ....................... (10,208) 9,541 1,506 839
Net Income™ .......................... (14,396) 16,470 3,520 5,594
Total Assets ........ ... ... 347,379 186,266 81,999 615,644
Capital Expenditures .................... 13,368 8,621 — 21,989
2002
Furniture Electronic Unallocated
and Contract Corporate and
(Amounts in Theusands) Cabinets Assemblies Eliminations Consolidated
NetSales.............. ... . ... $736,187  $436,248 $ 69 $1,172,504
Depreciation and Amortization............ 29,664 17,188 — 46,852
Interest Income ........................ - — 2,460 2,460
Interest Expense ........................ 235 5 89 329
TaxesonIncome ....................... 9,706 8,291 (892) 17,105
Net Income@® ... ... .. 20,435 13,496 569 34,500
Total Assets .......... ..., 364,307 229,385 80,420 674,112
Capital Expenditures .................... 12,022 25,973 — 37,995
2001
Furniture Electronic Unallocated
and Contract Corporate and
(Amounts in Theusands) Cabinets Assemblies Eliminations Consolidated
NetSales............. .o i, $871,835  $389,252 b 84 $1,261,171
Depreciation and Amortization............ 35,064 12,588 — 47,652
Interest Income ....... ... ... ... ...... — — 3,026 3,026
Interest Expense............ ..., 283 12 1,146 1,441
TaxesonIncome ....................... 4,580 6,166 (408) 10,338
Net Income™ . ... .. .................. 6,925 7,219 2,439 16,583
Total AsSsets ...t 412,934 192,891 73,159 678,984
Capital Expenditures .................... 25,445 21,333 — 46,778

Includes after-tax restructuring and other charges of $11.7 million in fiscal year 2003. On a segment
basis, the Furniture and Cabinets segment recorded $10.1 million of restructuring and other charges, the
Electronic Contract Assemblies segment recorded a $1.8 million restructuring charge, and Unallocated
Corporate recorded $0.2 million of restructuring income. See Note !7 of the Consolidated Financial
Statements for further discussion.
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Includes after-tax restructuring charges of $0.3 million in fiscal year 2002. On a segment basis, the
Furniture and Cabinets segment recorded a $1.0 million restructuring charge, the Electronic Contract
Assemblies segment recorded $0.6 million of restructuring income, and Unallocated Corporate recorded
$0.1 million of restructuring income. See Note 17 of the Consolidated Financial Statements for further
discussion.

Net income in the Furniture and Cabinets segment for fiscal year 2002 includes an $8.2 million after-tax
gain on the sale of the Company’s Boesendorfer piano subsidiary.

Includes after-tax restructuring and other charges of $19.7 million in fiscal year 2001. On a segment
basis, the Furniture and Cabinets segment recorded a $13.2 million restructuring charge, the Electronic
Contract Assemblies segment recorded $5.6 million of restructuring and other charges, and Unallocated
Corporate recorded a $0.9 million restructuring charge. See Note 17 of the Consolidated Financial
Statements for further discussion.

Geographic Area

The following geographic area data include net sales based on product shipment destination and long-

lived assets based on physical location. Long-lived assets include property and equipment and other long-term
assets such as software.

Year Ended June 30

(Amounts in Thousands) 2003 2002 2001
. Net Sales:
United States ...t $1,008,583  $1,049,265 $1,124,199
Foreign ... ... ..o 146,109 123,239 136,972
Total netsales ......... ... ... $1,154,692 $1,172,504  $1,261,171
Long-Lived Assets:
United States . .......... it $ 224069 § 261,724 $ 259,990
Foreign ... ... . . 38,270 34,239 30,650
Total long-lived assets . ..............c.oviunn.. $ 262339 § 295963 $ 290,640

47




KIMBALL INTERNATIONAL, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Note 15 Earnings Per Share

Earnings per share are computed using the two-class common stock method due to the dividend
preference of Class B Common Stock. Basic earnings per share are based on the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share are based on the weighted average number of
shares outstanding plus the assumed issuance of common shares and related payment of assumed dividends
for all potentially dilutive securities. Earnings per share of Class A and Class B Common Stock are as follows:

2003
(Amounts in Thousands, Except per Share Data) Class A Class B Total
Basic Earnings Per Share:
Dividends declared .. ........ ... .. ... ... $ 8,548 $ 15,539 § 24,087
Undistributed earnings (loss) ......................... (6,698)  (11,795)  (18,493)
NetIncome . ... ... i, $ 1,850 $ 3,744 $ 5,594
Average Basic Shares Outstanding . .................... 13,786 24,278 38,064
Basic Earnings Per Share........................... $ 013 § 0.5
Diluted Earnings Per Share:
Dividends declared and assumed dividends on dilutive
SHATES .« o oot $ 8,548 $ 15,553 § 24,101
Undistributed earnings (loss) ......................... (6,699) (11,808)  (18,507)
Net Income ... .. i $ 1849 $ 3,745 $§ 5,594
Average Diluted Shares Outstanding ................... 13,786 24,299 38,085
Diluted Earnings Per Share . ........................ $ 013 § 0.15
2002
(Amounts in Thousands, Except per Share Data) Class A Class B Total
Basic Earnings Per Share:
Dividends declared ............ ... . ... . ... ... $ 8,652 $15411  $24,063
Undistributed earnings .......... . ..., 3,336 6,601 10,437
NetIncome ... ... . $12,488  $22,012  $34,500
Average Basic Shares Qutstanding . ....................... 13,979 24,059 38,038
Basic Earnings Per Share.............................. $ 08 $ 091

Diluted Earnings Per Share:
Dividends declared and assumed dividends on dilutive shares.. $ 8,652 $15,430 $24,082

Undistributed earnings .......... .. .. i 3,826 6,592 10,418
NetIncome ...t $12,478  $22,022  $34,500

Average Diluted Shares Outstanding ...................... 13,979 24,089 38,068
Diluted Earnings Per Share . ........................... $ 089 $ 0091
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2001
(Amounts in Thousands, Except per Share Data) Class A Class B Total
Basic Earnings Per Share:
Dividends declared . .......... . .. ... $ 8761 $15,882 $24,643
Undistributed earnings (loss) .......... ... ..., (2,916)  (5,144)  (8,060)
Net Income .. ...t $ 5,845 $10,738  $16,583
Average Basic Shares OQutstanding ........................ 14,141 24,952 39,093
Basic Earnings Per Share. ....................... .. ..., $ 041 § 043

Diluted Earnings Per Share:
Dividends declared and assumed dividends on dilutive shares.. $ 8,761  $15,919  $24,680

Undistributed earnings (loss) ......... ..., (2,925)  (5,172)  (8,097)
Net Income . ..o $ 5,836  $10,747  $16,583

Average Diluted Shares Outstanding . ..................... 14,141 25,010 39,151
Diluted Earnings Per Share .. .......................... $ 041 § 043

Included in the diluted earnings per share computation are 21,000, 30,000 and 58,000 average shares of
Class B common stock representing the dilutive effect of stock options and contingently issuable performance
share grants for the twelve months ended June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Also included in the
diluted earnings per share computation are $14,000, $19,000 and $37,000 of Class B assumed dividends
payable on those dilutive shares for the twelve months ended June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. A
corresponding reduction of undistributed earnings has been allocated pro-rata over Class A and Class B
shares. All 3,073,000 average stock options outstanding were antidilutive for 2003 and were excluded from the
dilutive calculation. Also, 2,836,678 antidilutive stock options out of 2,871,014 average shares outstanding
were excluded from the dilutive calculation for 2002, and 1,960,871 antidilutive stock options out of 2,268,576
average shares outstanding were excluded from the dilutive calculation for 2001.

Note 16 Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income includes all changes in equity during a period except those resulting from
investments by, and distributions to, Share Owners. Comprehensive income consists of net income and other
comprehensive income, which includes the net change in unrealized gains and losses on securities, foreign
currency translation adjustments, and the net change in derivative gains and losses. The Company has elected
to disclose comprehensive income in the Consolidated Statements of Share Owners’ Equity. Accumulated
balances of other comprehensive income are as follows:

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income
(Net of tax if applicable)

Foreign Net Change in Accumulated
Currency Unrealized Gains Net Change in Other
Translation and Losses on Derivative Comprehensive
(Amounts in Thousands) Adjustments Securities Gains/Losses Income
Balance at June 30,2000 .......... $ 812 $ (486) $ — $ 326
Current year change .............. (33) 1,143 — 1,110
Balance at June 30, 2001 .......... 779 657 — 1,436
Current year change .............. (833) (28) 29 (832)
Balance at June 30,2002 .......... (54) 629 29 604
Current year change .............. 1,116 (77) (360) 679
Balance at June 30,2003 .......... $1,062 $ 552 $(331) $1,283
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Note 17 Restructuring and Other Expense
Restructuring:

During the second quarter of fiscal year 2003, the Company announced incremental cost scaling actions
to more closely align its operating capacities and capabilities with reduced demand levels related to the
prolonged nature of the global economic slowdown in many of the Company’s markets and the resulting
continuation of underutilized manufacturing capacity within both of the Company’s segments. Overall scaling
actions include the consolidation of capabilities and operations, selling and/or exiting redundant facilities,
aligning personnel costs and adjusting assets associated with scaling actions to their current fair values. The
Company elected to early adopt and apply the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 146, Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities, to account for the exit and disposal
activities associated with the fiscal year 2003 restructuring plan. Based on costs incurred to date and latest cost
estimates, the Company estimates total pre-tax restructuring and other costs discussed below to be
approximately $25 million.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2001, the Company announced a restructuring plan designed to
more closely align its operating capabilities and capacities with changing customer and market requirements
and current economic conditions. The plan included consolidating manufacturing facilities and processes, and
scaling capacities at other facilities. Activities outlined in the restructuring plan began in late fiscal year 2001
and are complete.

Fiscal Year 2003 Restructuring Charges

As a result of the restructuring plans, the Company recognized consolidated pre-tax restructuring expense
of $13.4 million in fiscal year 2003. Included in the restructuring charge is $7.4 million for asset write-downs,
$2.5 million for employee transition and other employee costs, and $3.5 million for plant closure and other exit
costs. The write-down of assets was required because the carrying value of the long-lived assets affected by the
restructuring plan exceeded the projected future undiscounted cash flows, including sales proceeds. Therefore,
the Company was required to reduce the carrying value of the long-lived assets to fair value.

Within the Furniture & Cabinets segment, the Company recorded pre-tax restructuring charges of
$9.6 million, primarily related to asset write-downs, employee transition costs and plant closure and other exit
costs. Within the Electronic Contract Assemblies segment, the Company recorded pre-tax restructuring
charges of $4.1 million, primarily related to asset write-downs. During fiscal year 2003, $0.3 million of pre-tax
restructuring income related to the sale of an asset was recorded in Unallocated Corporate.

Activities outlined in the restructuring plan began in the second quarter of fiscal year 2003 and are
expected to be substantially complete within 15 months of plan inception. These charges are included in the
Restructuring and Other Expense line item on the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Income.

Fiscal Year 2002 Restructuring Charges

The Company recognized pre-tax restructuring charges of $0.9 million in fiscal year 2002 related to the
restructuring plan announced in June 2001. The charges consisted of $1.4 million for facility consolidations,
$0.6 million for asset write-downs, employee transition costs of $0.1 million, and $1.2 million income as
adjustments to the original cost estimates. The $0.9 million charge included $1.7 million within the Furniture
and Cabinets segment, $0.6 million income within the Electronic Contract Assemblies segment and
$0.2 million income at Corporate.
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Fiscal Year 2001 Restructuring Charges

The Company recognized pre-tax restructuring charges of $25.7 million in conjunction with the
announcement of the fiscal year 2001 restructuring plan. The charges consisted of $2.6 million for employee
transition and other employee costs, $11.5 million for asset write-downs, $7.5 million for goodwill write-offs,
$3.4 million for plant closure and other exit costs, and $0.7 million (recorded in cost of goods sold) for
inventory write-downs. The write-down of assets and goodwill was required because the carrying value of the
long-lived assets affected by the restructuring plan exceeded the projected future undiscounted cash flows,
including sales proceeds. Therefore, the Company was required to reduce the carrying value of the long-lived
assets to fair value. The estimated fair value was measured by discounted cash flows. The $25.7 million charge
included $20.0 million within the Furniture and Cabinets segment, $4.2 million within the Electronic Contract
Assemblies segment and a Corporate charge of $1.5 million.

Reserves — At June 30, 2003, a total of $0.6 million of restructuring liabilities related to the fiscal 2003
restructuring plan remained on the Consolidated Balance Sheet as shown below. The remaining reserves relate
primarily to the idle leased facilities within the Furniture and Cabinets segment. The restructuring charge,
utilization and cash paid to date, and ending reserve balances at June 30, 2003 were as follows:

Transition Asset and Plant Closure

and Other Goodwill and Other
(Amounts in Thousands) Employee Costs Write-downs Exit Costs Total
FY ’01 Activity:
Amounts Charged —Cash .................... $ 2,618 $ — $ 3,421 $ 6,039
Amounts Charged — Non-Cash................ — 18,958 670 19,628
Subtotal . ... ... .. 2,618 18,958 4,091 25,667
Amounts Utilized/Cash Paid ................ .. (1,215) (18,958) (49) (20,222)
Amounts Adjusted . ... L — — — —
Reserve June 30,2001 ........................ $ 1,403 $ — $ 4,042 $§ 5,445
FY ’02 Activity:
Amounts Charged —Cash .................... 116 —_ 1,408 1,524
Amounts Charged — Non-Cash................ — 553 — 553
Subtotal . ...... ... ... . 116 553 1,408 2,077
Amounts Utilized/Cash Paid .................. (1,008) (553) (2,157) (3,718)
Amounts Adjusted . ... L. (511) — (669) (1,180)
Reserve June 30,2002 . . ... ... ., $ - $ — $ 2,624 $ 2624
FY ’03 Activity:
Amounts Charged —Cash .................... 2,521 — 2,703 5,224
Amounts Charged — Non-Cash................ — 7,393 766 8,159
Subtotal ........ ... 2,521 7,393 3,469 13,383
Amounts Utilized/Cash Paid .................. (2,504) (7,393) (5,577) (15,474)
Amounts Adjusted . ...... ... oL — — 59 59
Reserve June 30,2003 ... . ..., $ 17 $ — $ 575 $ 592

In total, the Company has recognized pre-tax charges of $40.0 million related to the two restructuring
plans, including $13.4 million in the current year, $0.9 million in fiscal year 2002, and $25.7 million in fiscal
year 2001. These actions have reduced the Company’s total cost structure through reduced employee costs,
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manufacturing process costs and facility costs. A portion of the savings is being redeployed into strategic
initiatives designed to accelerate top-line revenue growth and quality and efficiency improvements.

Other Expense:

During the second quarter of fiscal year 2003, the Company recorded a pre-tax charge of $8.0 million for
asset impairment within the Furniture and Cabinets segment to align the carrying values of long-lived assets at
the Company’s veneer operations with their fair values. The charge is unrelated to the above described
restructuring plans and is pursuant to the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144,
Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets. This charge is included in the Restructur-
ing and Other Expense line item of the Company’s fiscal year 2003 Consolidated Statement of Income.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2001, the Company recorded a pre-tax charge of $2.7 million for
goodwill impairment within the Electronic Contract Assemblies Segment unrelated to the above described
restructuring. This charge is included in the Restructuring and Other Expense line item on the Company’s
fiscal year 2001 Consolidated Statement of Income.

Note 18 Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)

Quarterly financial information is summarized as follows:
Three Months Ended

(Amounts in Thousands, Except for Per Share Data) September 3¢ December 31 March 31 June 38
2603:
NetSales ..., $290,115 $302,340  $285,856  $276,381
Gross Profit ........... ... .. .. ... ... 63,418 66,288 60,086 60,021
Net Income (Loss) . ..........cocnen.. 4,598 (4,609) 2,764 2,841
Basic Earnings (Loss) Per Share:
Class A .. $ 012 $ (012) $ 007 $ 007
Class B ... 0.12 (0.12) 0.07 0.08
Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share:
Class A. ... $ 0.12 $ (012) $ 007 $ 007
Class B ...... ... ... o i it 0.12 (0.12) 0.07 0.08
2002:
NetSales ............oviiiiiininn, $285,776 $296,602  $290,126  $300,000
Gross Profit .......................... 64,704 69,366 67,859 66,909
NetlIncome ......... ... ... ... ...... 4,889 6,547 15,796 7,268
Basic Earnings Per Share:
Class A ..o $ 0.13 $ 017 $ 041 $ 019
Class B ......... ... ... 0.13 0.17 0.42 0.19
Diluted Earnings Per Share:
Class A ... $ 013 $ o017 $ 041 $ 019
Class B .. ... i 0.13 0.17 0.42 0.19
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Three Months Ended

(Amounts in Thousands, Except for Per Share Data) September 3¢ December 31 March 31 June 36
2001:
NetSales ................iiii..L. $320,804 $332,803 $319,767  $287,797
Gross Profit .......... ... ... ......... 76,182 79,964 70,561 65,546
Net Income (Loss) . ................... 10,844 12,371 6,943 (13,575)
Basic Earnings (Loss) Per Share:
Class A. ... i i $ 027 $ 031 $ 017 $ (0.39)
Class B........ ... i, 0.28 0.32 0.18 (0.35)
Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share:
Class A. ... ..o $ 027 $ 031 $ 017 $ (0.35)
ClassB ............. ... ... 0.28 0.32 0.18 (0.35)

Net loss in the second quarter of fiscal 2003 includes $10.0 million, or $0.26 per share, for after-tax
restructuring and other charges.

Net income in the third quarter of fiscal 2002 includes an $8.2 million after-tax gain, or $0.22 per share,
on the sale of the Company’s Boesendorfer piano subsidiary.

Net loss in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2001 includes $19.7 million, or $0.51 per share, for after-tax
restructuring and other charges.
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Item 9 — Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

As reported by the Company in a Form 8-K filed on April 9, 2002, Kimball International, Inc. dismissed
Arthur Andersen LLP as its independent auditors and engaged Deloitte & Touche LLP to serve as the
Company’s new independent auditors. The change in auditors was effective immediately.

There were no disagreements with the Company’s auditors during the three year period ending June 30,
2003.

Item 9a — Controls and Procedures
(a) Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures.

The Company maintains controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be
disclosed in the reports that the Company files or submits under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the rules and forms of
the Securities and Exchange Commission. Based upon their evaluation of those controls and procedures
performed as of June 30, 2003, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the Company
concluded, based upon their best judgement, that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were
effective.

(b) Changes in internal controls.

There have been no changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the quarter ended June 30, 2003 that has materially affected, or that is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

PART III

Item 10 — Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant
Directors

The information called for by this item with respect to Directors is incorporated by reference to the
material contained in the Registrant’s Proxy Statement for its annual meeting of Share Owners to be held
October 21, 2003 under the caption “Election of Directors.”

Aundit Committee

The information called for by this item with respect to the Audit Committee and its financial expert is
incorporated by reference to the material contained in the Registrant’s Proxy Statement for its annual meeting
of Share Owners to be held October 21, 2003 under the caption “Information Concerning the Board of
Directors and Committees.”

Executive Officers of the Registramt

The information called for by this item with respect to Executive Officers of the Registrant is included at
the end of Part I and is incorporated herein by reference.
Compliance with Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act

The information called for by this item with respect to compliance with Section 16(a) of the Exchange
Act is incorporated by reference to the material contained in the Registrant’s Proxy Statement for its annual
meeting of Share Owners to be held October 21, 2003 under the caption “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership
Reporting Compliance”.
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Ttem 11 — Executive Compensation

The information called for by this item is incorporated by reference to the material contained in the
Registrant’s Proxy Statement for its annual meeting of Share Owners to be held October 21, 2003 under the

¥, &

captions — “Information Concerning the Board of Directors and Committees”; “Compensation of Executive
Officers.”

Item 12 — Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Share Owner
Matters

Security Ownership
The information called for by this item is incorporated by reference to the material contained in the

Registrant’s Proxy Statement for its annual meeting of Share Owners to be held October 21, 2003 under the
caption “Share Ownership Information.”

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

The following table summarizes the Company’s equity compensation plans as of June 30, 2003:

Number of Securities Remaining

Number of Available for Future Issuance
Securities to be Weighted Average Under Equity Compensation
Issued Upon Exercise Price of Plans (excluding securities
Exercise of Options QOutstanding Options reflected in first column)

Equity compensation plans
approved by Share
Owners ................ 3,013,636 $16.23 4,148,178V

Equity compensation plans
not approved by Share
Owners ................ —

Total ................. ... 3,013,636

4,148,178

o
—
N
”‘\’ 'I
W

(1) Includes 4,007,730 shares available for issuance as Incentive Stock Options, Non-qualified Stock
Options, Stock Appreciation Rights and Performance Shares under the Company’s 1996 Plan, and
140,448 shares available for issuance as Non-qualified Stock Options and stock grants under the
Company’s 1996 Directors’ Plan.

Item 13 — Certain Relationships and Related Transactions
The information called for by this item is incorporated by reference to the material contained in the

Registrant’s Proxy Statement for its annual meeting of Share Owners to be held October 21, 2003 under the
caption “Certain Transactions”.

Item 14 — Principal Accountant Fees and Services
The information called for by this item is incorporated by reference to the material contained in the

Registrant’s Proxy Statement for its annual meeting of Share Owners to be held October 21, 2003 under the
caption “Relationship with Independent Public Accountants.”
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PART IV
Ttem 15 — Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K
(a) The following documents are filed as part of the Report:
(1) Financial Statements:

The following consolidated financial statements of the Registrant are found in Item 8 and
incorporated herein.
Report of Management 25
Report of Independent Auditors 26
Report of Previous Independent Public Accountants 27
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2003 and 2002 .. 28

Consolidated Statements of Income for the Three Years
Ended June 30, 2003 29

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Three Years
Ended June 30, 2003

Consolidated Statements of Share Owners’ Equity for the
Three Years Ended June 30, 2003

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(2) Financial Statement Schedules:

I1. Valuation and Qualifying Accounts for the Three Years
Ended June 30, 2003

Schedules other than those listed above are omitted because they are either not required or
not applicable, or the required information is presented in the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

(3) Exhibits

See the Exhibit Index on page 60 for a list of the exhibits filed or incorporated herein as a part of this
report.

(b) Reports on Form 8-K filed during the quarter ended June 30, 2003:

None
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

KiMBALL INTERNATIONAL, INC.

/s/ ROBERT F. SCHNEIDER

Robert F. Schneider
Executive Vice President,
Chief Financial Officer,
Treasurer

August 28, 2003

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below
by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated:

/s/ DouGLAS A. HABIG

Douglas A. Habig
Chairman of the Board,
Chief Executive Officer
September 2, 2003

/s/  JamEes C. THYEN

James C. Thyen
President
September 2, 2003

/s/ ROBERT F. SCHNEIDER
Robert F. Schneider
Executive Vice President,
Chief Financial Officer,
Treasurer

August 28, 2003

/s/ MicHELLE R. SCHROEDER

Michelle R. Schroeder

Corporate Controller

(functioning as Principal Accounting Officer)
August 28, 2003
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Signature Signature

/s/ JoHN B. HABIG /s/ DouGLAS A. HABIG

John B. Habig* Douglas A. Habig*
Director Director

/s/ JoHN T. THYEN /s/ JamEs C. THYEN
John T. Thyen* James C. Thyen*

Director Director

/s/ CHRISTINE M. VUJOVICH /s/ Jack R. WENTWORTH

Christine M. Vujovich* Jack R. Wentworth*
Director Director

/s/ HARRY W. BOWMAN /s/ BRIAN K. HABIG

Harry W. Bowman* Brian K. Habig*
Director Director

/s/ PoLLY B. KAWALEK /s/ GEOFFREY A. STRINGER

Polly B. Kawalek* Geoffrey A. Stringer*
Director Director

* The undersigned does hereby sign this document on my behalf pursuant to powers of attorney duly executed
and filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, all in the capacities as indicated:

Date

September 2, 2003 /s/ RONALD J. THYEN
Ronald J. Thyen
Director

September 3, 2003 /s/  ALAN B. GRAF, JR.
Alan B. Graf, Jr.
Director

Individually and as Attorneys-In-Fact

58




KIMBALL INTERNATIONAL, INC.

Schedule II. — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Balance at Additions Charged to Balance at
Beginning Charged to Other Write-offs and End of
Description of Year Expense Accounts Recoveries Year
(Amounts in Thousands)
Year Ended June 30, 2003
Valuation Allowances:
Receivables ....................... $5,515 $ 1,491 $(239) $ (491) $6,276
Deferred Tax Asset ................ $ 0 $ 45 — — $ 45
Year Ended June 30, 2002
Valuation Allowances:
Receivables .. ..................... $6,880 $ 737 $(493) $(1,609) $5,515
Deferred Tax Asset ................ $1,189 $(1,189) — — $ 0
Year Ended June 30, 2001
Valuation Allowances:
Receivables . ...................... $4,713 $ 3,912 $ 364 $(2,109) $6,880
Deferred Tax Asset ................ $1,983 $ (794) — — $1,189

Fiscal year 2002 reductions to receivables reserves and deferred tax valuation allowance include
reductions related to the sale of the Company’s piano subsidiary.
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Exhibit No.

3(a)
3(b)
10(a)*
10(b)*
10(c)*
10(d)*
10(e)*

10(f)

10(g)*
11

21
23
24
31.1

312
321

32.2

KIMBALL INTERNATIONAL, INC.
INDEX OF EXHIBITS

Description
Amended and restated Articles of Incorporation of the Company. (Incorporated by reference
to the Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2002.)

Restated By-laws of the Company. (Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 10-Q
for the period ended September 30, 2000.)

Supplemental Bonus Plan. (Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 10-K for the
year ended June 30, 1999.)

1996 Stock Incentive Program. (Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 10-K for
the year ended June 30, 2001.)

1996 Director Stock Compensation and Option Plan. (Incorporated by reference to the
Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2001.)

Form of Split Dollar Life Insurance Contract. (Incorporated by reference to the Company’s
Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2000.)

Supplemental Employee Retirement Plan. (Incorporated by reference to the Company’s
Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2002.)

Credit Agreement with Bank One, NA. (Incorporated by reference to the Company’s
Form 10-Q for the period ended December 31, 2002.)

Property Management Services Agreement (director’s management contract).

Computation of Earnings Per Share. (Incorporated by reference to Note 15, Earnings Per
Share, of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, which can be found in Item 8.)

Significant Subsidiaries of the Company.
Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP.
Power of Attorney.

Certification filed by Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a), as
adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification filed by Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a), as
adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification furnished by the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification furnished by the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

* = constitutes management contract or compensatory arrangement.
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OTHER CORPORATE DATA

Kimball International, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Annual Meeting:

The annual meeting of Share Owners will be
held at 9:30 a.m. Eastern Standard Time on
October 21, 2003, at the General Office Building,
Kimball International, Inc., 1600 Royal Street,
Jasper, Indiana. Share Owners are cordially
invited to attend.

18-K Report:

A copy of the Company’s annual report to the
Securities and Exchange Commission on Form
10-K is available, without charge, upon written
request directed to Robert F. Schneider,
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
and Treasurer at our corporate headquarters.

Common Stock:

Kimball International Class B
Common Stock is traded on
the Nasdaq Stock Market
under the symbol: KBALB.

Transfer Agent and Registrar of the
Class A and B Common Stock:

Share Owners with questions concerning

" address changes, dividend checks, registration
changes, lost share certificates or transferring
shares may contact:

National City Bank

Corporate Trust Operations

PO Box 92301

Cleveland, OH 44193-0900

Phone: (800) 622-6757

TDD Line: (800) 622-5571

E-Mail Address:
shareholder.inquiries@nationalcity.com

Analyst Contact:

Financial analysts with questions concerning the
Company may contact Robert F. Schneider,
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
and Treasurer at our corporate headquarters.

Design: Black & White Design, Louisville, Kentucky

Share Owner Contact:

Share Owners with general questions
concerning the Company may contact John H.
Kahle, Executive Vice President, General
Counsel, Secretary at our corporate
headquarters. All members of management
welcome suggestions about the Company and
its performance.

Corporate Headquarters:

Kimball International, Inc.

1600 Royal Street

Jasper, Indiana 47549-1001

(812) 482-1600

(800) 482-1616 (Toll Free)

(812) 482-8500 (TDD for Hearing Impaired)

Internet Address:
Additional information on Kimball International is
available at www.kimball.com on the Internet.

Private Securities Litigation Reform Act

of 1995:

This document contains forward-looking
statements that involve risks and uncertainties
regarding Kimball International’s operations and
future results. In accordance with the “safe
harbor’ provisions of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995, Kimball provides
cautionary statements, detailed in the Company’s
Securities and Exchange Commission filings
including, without limitation, the Company's Form
10-K, which identifies specific factors that could
cause actual results or events to differ materially
from those described in the forward-looking
statements.




SALES, MANUFACTURING AND SERVICE OPERATIONS

Furniture and
Cabinets Segment

Showrooms & Service Centers
New York, Chicago, Boston,

Los Angeles, San Francisco,
Denver, Atlanta, Dallas,

High Point, Washington, D.C.
and Jasper

Product display and regional
distribution

Kimball Home
Jasper, Indiana
Residential furniture

Kimball Hospitality
Jasper, Indiana
Lodging and healthcare furniture

Kimball Cffice

Jasper, Indiana

High-end office furniture
casegoods, systems, seating,
and filing sales

National Office Furniture
Jasper, Indiana

Mid-market office furniture
casegoods, seating and filing sales

Transwall
West Chester, Pennsylvania
Floor-to-cefling systems

flexcel-Logistics
Jasper, Indiana
Transportation and fleet operations

Product Design &
Research Center
Jasper, Indiana

Product research, design,
development, and testing

flexcel-Jasper 15th Street
Jasper, Indiana
Office furniture systems

flexcel-Post Falls

Post Falls, Idaho

Office furniture casegoods,
systems and filing

flexcel-Santa Claus/Nashville
Santa Claus, Indiana and
Nashville, Tennessee

TV and audio cabinets, TV stands,
projection TV cabinets, and

office furniture

flexcel-Jasper Power Drive
Jasper, Indiana

Molded polyurethane, polyester
and elastomers

flexcel-Jasper 16th and

30th Streets

Jasper, Indiana

Lodging and healthcare
casegoods, contract furniture and
components

flexcel-Jasper Cherry Street
Jasper, Indiana

Flat, molded, postformed, and
plastic-faced plywood, banded
flakeboard, and veneer faces

flexcel-11th Avenue/Danvilie
Jasper, Indiana and

Danville, Kentucky

Office, residential, lodging, and
healthcare seating

fiexceljuarez, S.A. de C.V.
Juarez, Mexico and

El Paso, Texas

Projection TV cabinets

<> Kimball
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International

Kimball International, inc.
1600 Royal Street
Jasper, IN 47549
812-482-1600
812-482-8500 TDD
www.kimball.com

flexcel-Mexicali, S.A. de C.V.
Mexicali, Mexico
Projection TV cabinets

flexcel-Borden
Borden, Indiana
Office furniture casegoods

flexcel-Salem
Salem, Indiana
Office furniture casegoods

flexcel-Fordsville
Fordsville, Kentucky
Office furniture casegoods

Evansville Veneer
Chandler, Indiana
Veneer

Indiana Hardwoods
Chandler, Indiana,
Gordonsville and Lafayette,
Tennessee and Cloverport and
Greensburg, Kentucky
Lumber mills and lumber yards

Electronic Contract
Assemblies Segment

Kimball Electrorics Jasper
Jasper, Indiana
Electronic assemblies

Kimbali Electronics Auburmn
Auburn, Indiana
Electronic assemblies

Kimball Electronics Poland
Poznan, Poland
Electronic assemblies

Kimball Electronics Thailand
Laem Chabang, Thailand
Electronic assemblies

Kimco, S.A.de C.V.
Reynosa, Mexico and
McAllen, Texas
Electronic assemblies

Administrative, Shared,
and Support Services

Corporate Headquarters
Jasper, Indiana

Executive, administrative and
sales offices, and corporate
support services

Education Center &
Corporate Showroom
Jasper, Indiana

Training and product display

Kimball Trave! and

Guest Services

Huntingburg and Jasper, Indiana
Flight services and guest refations

Kimball Kids
Jasper, Indiana
Employee child development center




